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[Translation from the original text in Greek]

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of “AKTOR ATE”

Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of AKTOR ATE and
its subsidiaries which comprise the separate and consolidated statement of financial position as of 31
December 2011 and the separate and consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate and consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate and consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate and consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the separate and consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate and
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
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separate and consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the separate and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AKTOR ATE and its subsidiaries as31 December 2011, and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

Reference on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

We verified the conformity and consistency of the information given in the Board of Directors’ report
with the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Athens, 21 May 2012
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Statement of Financial Position

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY
Note 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 153,966 155,748 73,272 70,079
Intangible assets 6 5,469 5,463 73 38
Investments in subsidiaries - - 111,509 104,922
Investments in associates 872 69,469 1,397 1,397
Investments in joint ventures v.7 1,209 920 2,553 2,247
Financial assets held for sale 11 280,085 396 51 372
Deferred tax asset 19 2,515 75 936 -
Other non-current receivables 13 10,435 15,852 375 1,466
454,550 247,923 190,165 180,520
Current assets
Inventories 12 25,220 30,076 393 539
Trade and other receivables 13 750,043 884,457 570,449 544,368
Cash and cash equivalents 14 126,251 181,328 38,064 68,601
901,514 1,095,862 608,906 613,508
Total assets 1,356,064 1,343,785 799,071 794,029
EQUITY
Attributable to owners of the company
Ordinary Shares 15 139,747 123,900 139,747 123,900
Share premium 15 72,789 72,789 72,789 72,789
Other reserves 16 173,395 124,360 109,473 107,768
Retained Earnings 96,122 65,778 -98,825 32,762
482,053 386,828 223,184 337,218
Non controlling interests (22,604) 3,093 - -
Total equity 459,449 389,921 223,184 337,218
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 56,582 43,965 41,728 30,000
Deferred tax liabilities 19 6,975 20,012 - 7,841
Retirement benefit obligations 20 5,194 6,060 4,285 5,107
Government Grants 21 1,450 912 - -
Other non-current liabilities 18 8,012 2,430 5,494 11
Other non current provisions 22 3,219 7,977 332 3,483
81,432 81,357 51,839 46,442
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 586,768 597,140 372,586 303,337
Current income tax liabilities 3,039 11,477 - 1,875
Borrowings 17 193,145 250,262 122,551 95,547
Dividends payable - 9,468 - 9,434
Other current provisions 22 32,232 4,161 28,911 176
815,184 872,507 524,049 410,369
Total liabilities 896,615 953,864 575,887 456,810
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,356,064 1,343,785 799,071 794,029

The notes on pages 12 to 77 form an integral g

dhtese financial statements.

(1) 1(77)



‘ AKTOR

AKTOR SA
Annual Financial statements in accordance with IFRS
for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2011

Income Statement

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other operating income/(expenses) (net)

Profit /(Loss) from Joint Ventures
Operating Profit/(Loss)

Income from dividends

Share of profit/ (loss) of associates
Financial costs net

Profitbefore income tax

Income tax

Net profit/ (loss) for the period

Profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY
No 1-Jan to 1-Jan to
te 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
859,307 1,287,666 326,516 535,671
23 (960,020) (1,229,270) (366,901) (534,704)
(100,713) 58,396 (40,385) 967
23 (1,264) (2,952) - -
23 (35,425) (39,015) (19,419) (22,804)
24 196,879 12,800 34,317 11,791
7d (153) (593) (65,903 ) 16,639
59,323 28,636 (91,390) 6,592
- - - 692
9 (4,421) (7,002) - .
25 (13,038) (12,251) (4,399) (990)
41,864 9,383 (95,789) 6,294
27 5,709 (23,111) 5,799 (7,078)
47,573 (13,728) (89,990) (784)
72,609 (9,637 (89,990) (784)
(25,036) (6,091) -
47,573 (13,728) (89,990) (784)

The notes on pages 12 to 77 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Net profit/ (loss) for the period 47,573 (13,728) (89,990) (784)
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translationdifferences (3,191) 4,057 (38) (966)
Reclassification adjustment of the currency
translationdifferences reserve of EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) (1,278) - - -
Change in value of available for sale financiaktss 56,680 (32) (321) (32)
Cash flow hedge 2,443 2,306 - -
Reclassification adjustment of cash flow hedge
reserve of EGU (8,784) - - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period (net after taxes) 45,870 6,331 (360) (998)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period 93,443 (7,397) (90,350) (1,782)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 118,997 (9,493 (90,350) (2,782)
Non controlling interests (25,554) (5,904) - -
Total 93,443 (7,397) (90,350) (1,782)

The notes on pages 12 to 77 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP FIGURES

Amounts in EUR thousand

Results Non
Share Share Other carried controlling
Note capital premium reserves forward Total interests Total
1 January 2010 123,900 72,789 102,649 100,385 399,722 9,960 8R9,6
(13,728
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - (7,637) (7,637) (6,091) )
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences 16 - 3,871 - 73,8 186 4,057
Changes in value of available for sale
financial assets 16 - - (32) - (32) - (32)
Changes in value of cash flow hedge 16 - 2,306 - 2,306 - 2,306
Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes) - - 6,145 - 6,145 186 6,331
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - 6,145 (7,637) (1,493) (5,904) (7,397)
Transfer to reserves 16 - 15,567 (15,567) - -
Proportion of non controlling interests in
the distribution of results of JiiJli D
subsidiary - - - - - (89) (89)
(10,325 (10,852
Dividends distributed - - - (10,325) ) (527) )
Effect of acquisitions and change in
participation share in subsidiaries - - (1,077)(1,077) (346) (1,422)
(11,40: (12,36«
- - 15,567 (26,969) ) (962) )
31 December 2010 123,900 72,789 124,360 65,779 386,828 3,094 389,92
1 January 2011 123,900 72,789 124,360 65,779 386,828 3,094 389,92
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - 72,609 72,609 (25,036) 47,573
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translationdifferences 16 - (2,673) - ,603) (518) (3,191)
Reclassification adjustment of the foreign
exchange differences reserve of EGU - (1,278) {1,278) - (1,278)
Changes in value of available for sale
financial assets 16 - - 56,680 - 56,680 - 56,680
Changes in value of cash flow hedge 16 - 2,443 - 2,443 - 2,443
Reclassification adjustment of cash flow
hedge reserve of EGU - (8,784) - (8,784) - (8)78
Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes) - - 46,388 - 46,388 (518) 45,870
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - 46,388 72,609 118,997 (25,554) 93,443
Issue of ordinary shares from absorption of
Pantechniki 15 15,847 - - - 15,847 - 15,847
Transfer to reserves 16 - 582 (582) - - -
Proportion of non controlling interests in
the distribution of results of JifJliD
subsidiary - - - - - (88) (88)
Dividends distributed - - - - - - -
(39,532 (39,532
Effect from absorption of Pantechniki - - 2,064 (41,596) ) - )
Effect of acquisitions and change in
participation share in subsidiaries - - (87) )(87 (56) (143)
(23,77 (23,91¢
15,847 - 2,646 (42,265) ) (144) )
31 December 2011 139,747 72,789 173,395 96,122 482,053 (22,604) 4499
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Change in Other reserves in 2011 is attributedskp@ated companies with €8,456 thousand. The ctgpe
amount for 2010 was €5,356 thousand.

COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1 January 10
Net profit/ (loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income

Currency translationdifferences
Changes in value of available for sale
financial assets

Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period

Transfer to reserves

Dividends distributed
31 December 10

1 January 11
Net profit/ (loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income

Currency translationdifferences
Changes in value of available for sale
financial assets

Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period

Issue of ordinary sharesfrom absorption of

Pantechniki
Effect from absorption of Pantechniki

31 December 11

Results
Ordinary Share Other carried
Note shares premium reserves forward Total
123,900 72,789 93,402 59,234 349,325
- - - (784) (784)
16 - - (966) - (966)
16 - - (32) - (32)
- - (998) - (998)
- - (998) (784) (1,782)
16 - - 15,364 (15,364) -
- - - (10,325) (10,325)
123,900 72,789 107,768 32,762 337,218
123,900 72,789 107,768 32,762 337,218
- - - (89,990) (89,990)
16 - - (38) - (38)
16 - - (321) - (321)
- - (360) - (360)
- - (360) (89,990) (90,350)
15,847 - - - 15,847
- - 2,064 (41,596) (39,532)
139,747 72,789 109,473 (98,825) 223,184

The notes on pages 12 to 77 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Operating activities
Profit before taxes

Adjustments for (plus/minus):

Depreciation
Provisions

Currency translation differences

Profit/(loss)from investing activities

Profit from sale of % in EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS (EGW)

adjustment in fair value of EGU in HELLAS GOLD SA

Fianance expenses

Impairment provisions and write-offs
Changes in working capital accounts or relatedptrating

activities:

Decrease/ (increase) of inventory
Decrease/ (increase) of receivables
(Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (excluding ksn

Less:
Financial expenses paid
Taxes paid

Cash generated/(used in)from operating activites (

Investing activities

Proceeds from Sale of % in EGU

(Acquisition)/ Disposal of subsidiaries, associafé and other

investments

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtiment properties 5,6

Proceeds from sales of PPE and intangible asseétmaestment

property
Interest received

Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties

Dividends received

Cash generated /(used in) from investing activifigs

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Repayments of leases
Dividends paid
Tax paid on dividends

Profits for government Grants received
Third party participation in share capital increasubsidiaries

Cash generated/(used in)from financing activitigs (

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivakefor the

period (a) + (b) + (c)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at period end

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY
01.01.2011 - 01.01.2010 - 01.01.2011 - 01.01.2010 -
Note 31.12.2011  31.12.2010 31.12.2011  31.12.2010
41,864 9,383 (95,789) 6,294
5,6, 26,576 34,132 10,419 11,367
(3,469) (577) (955) (114)
(2,459) (1,423) 3 (963)
(5,100) 3 (3,189) (1,709)
(261,250) - - -
25 20,339 17,904 7,797 3,664
72,617 - BB -
17,337 1,953 321 2,437
97,007 33,020  (42,675) (61,909)
(43,402) (152,502) 60,268 (4,826)
(18,345) (16,317) (6,675) (3,191)
(24,697) (9,493) (11,692) (3,345)
(82,981) (80,798) (51,218) (52,297)
93,898 - - -
(14,752) (1,424) (980) (831)
(5,163) (16,329) (3,384) 108)
56 10,910 7,018 4,364 720
4,428 3,651 871 766
13 - - (151) (38)
210 - - 400
89,531 (7,085) 721 (11,089)
3 - -
120,664 206,383 57,477 91,301
(173,034) (160,512) (28,083) (18,612)
(382) (3,009) - -
(9,434) (19,775) (9,434) (19,774)
- (1,033) - (1,033)
21 559 722 - -
3) 162 - -
(61,627) 22,037 19,960 51,882
(55,077) (64,945) (30,537) (11,503)
181,328 246,274 68,601 80,105
126,251 181,328 38,064 68,601

The notes on pages 12 to 77 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information
The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlgoinstructions & quarrying.

The Company was incorporated and established ied@reThe address of its registered office is 25dtrist.,
14564, Kifissia, Attica.

AKTOR SA is a subsidiary of ELLAKTOR SA (100%) whigs listed on the Athens Exchange.

These financial statements were approved by thedBoaDirectors on 26 March 2012 and are subjech®®
approval of the General Meeting of shareholdergyTdre available on the company’s website at: wktoragr

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The basic accounting principles applied in the grafon of these financial statements are set elaw These
principles have been consistently applied to adrggoresented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and company financial statenfemte been prepared in accordance with the Iniensdt
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Im&gbions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they havenberedorsed by the European Union, and IFRS issydtieb
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).eTfinancial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the finaheiasets available for sale at fair value througbfipand loss
valued at fair value.

On 29 March 2011, the boards of directors of AKTOR and EFA TECHNIKI SA decided to start negotiaton
with the purpose of proceeding to the split of PAACHNIKI SA and its absorption by the two Companies,
accordance with the provisions of Codified Law 24920 and Law 2166/1993, the TransformationBalance
Sheet date being 31 March 2011. This transformati@s completed pursuant to decisions Ref.No. EM-
26986/31.12.2011, EM-26988/31.12.2011 of DeputydHeiRegion, Northern Athens Division, and decision
Ref.No. EM-29397/31.12.2011 of the Deputy Head efi&n, Central Athens Division, which approved spét,

and the relevant registration announcements wergenia the Companies Register as regards the almsorbe
company PANTECHNIKI SA and the receiving company KBR SA.

Following the above, the parent company, AKTOR 8dysolidated the book value of assets and liadulitif the
absorbed company, PANTECHNIKI SA, , in the corperand consolidated Statement of Financial Posé®of
31 December 2011.

The method of predecessor accounting was followethé preparation of the said corporate and cootestald
financial statements with regards to the absormidPantechniki SA.

The preparation of the financial statements un&&3 requires management to use accounting estiraat
assumptions in implementing the accounting polia@spted. The areas involving a higher degreedgment or
complexity, or other assumptions and estimates hava&gnificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going Concern

The financial statements as of 31 December 201lpeepared in accordance with the International iéred
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasonaesentation of the financial position, profit alods, and
cash flows of the Group, in accordance with thagple of going concern. Given the economic crifligre is
increased financial insecurity in international k&s, especially with regards the economy of Gredeadlowing
careful examination and as explained in the FirariRisk Management (note 3), the Group considexs {h) the
preparation of the financial statements in accocdanith the principle of going concern is not afést; (b) the
assets and liabilities of the Group are presenbeckctly in accordance with the accounting prinegplised by the
Group; and (c) programs and actions have beemethto deal with problems that may arise in refatm the
Group’s activities.
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2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsngergretations have been issued that are mandébory
accounting periods beginning during the currengniryear and subsequent years. The Group’s evaiuatithe
effect of these new standards, amendments angiatations is as follows:

Standards and Interpretations effective for theemnirfinancial year

IAS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”

This amendment attempts to reduce disclosuresaok#ctions between government-related entitiesctardy
related-party definition. More specifically, it remes the requirement for government-related eatitiedisclose
details of all transactions with the government attier government-related entities, clarifies amdptifies the
definition of a related party and requires the Idisgre not only of the relationships, transactiand outstanding
balances between related parties, but of commitsreshivell in both the consolidated and the indigidinancial
statements. This revision does not affect the Gsdigancial statements.

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Presentgion”

This amendment clarifies how certain rights isssiesuld be classified. In particular, based on émsendment,
rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed namix the entity’s own equity instruments for agfixkamount of
any currency are equity instruments if the entffers the rights, options or warrants pro rataltmfits existing
owners of the same class of its own non-derivatigaity instruments. This amendment is not relevarthe
Group.

IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments”

This Interpretation addresses the accounting byetitity that issues equity instruments to a coedit order to
settle, in full or in part, a financial liabilityhis interpretation is not relevant to the Group.

IFRIC 14 (Amendment) “The Limit on a Defined Beneft Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction”

The amendments apply in limited circumstances: wdreentity is subject to minimum funding requiretseand

makes an early payment of contributions to coves¢hrequirements. The amendments permit such &y &nt
treat the benefit of such an early payment as s@tashis interpretation is not relevant to the @x.o

Amendments to standards that form part of the IASEI10 annual improvements project

The amendments set out below describe the key elsaoglFRSs following the publication in May 2010tloe
results of the IASB’s annual improvements projedhless otherwise stated the following amendmentsiato
have a material impact on the Group’s financiaiesteents.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
The amendments provide additional guidance witlpeesto: (i) contingent consideration arrangements arising
from business combinations with acquisition dates@ding the application of IFRS 3 (2008); (ii) mdng non-

controlling interests; and (iii) accounting for si&dased payment transactions that are part of sindsms
combination, including un-replaced and voluntarédplaced share-based payment awards.

IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”
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The amendments include multiple clarifications tethto the disclosure of financial instruments.

IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

The amendment clarifies that entities may presandralysis of the components of other comprehersogne
either in the statement of changes in equity oniwithe notes.

IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statenms”

The amendment clarifies that the consequential @memnts to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 resulting fiteer2008
revisions to IAS 27 are to be applied prospectively

IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
The amendment places greater emphasis on the sliselgrinciples that should be applied with respect

significant events and transactions, including dapes to fair value measurements, and the need tatepd
relevant information from the most recent annuglone.

IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”

The amendment clarifies the meaning of the terin ¥falue’ in the context of measuring award creditsder
customer loyalty programmes.

Standards and Interpretations effective from peripeginning on or after 1 January 2012

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or@ftdanuary 2015)

IFRS 9 is the first Phase of the Board's projectréplace IAS 39 and deals with the classificatiom a
measurement of financial assets and financialliiegsi. The IASB intends to expand IFRS 9 in sulset phases
in order to add new requirements for impairment hadge accounting. The Group is currently investigathe
impact of IFRS 9 on its financial statements. Threup cannot currently early adopt IFRS 9 as it haisbeen
endorsed by the EU. Only once approved will theuprdecide if IFRS 9 will be adopted prior to 1 Jamy2015.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (effective for annual periods beginning on orftdanuary 2013)

IFRS 13 provides new guidance on fair value measent and disclosure requirements. These requirentent
not extend the use of fair value accounting but/igi® guidance on how it should be applied whereuds is

already required or permitted by other standardsiwiFRSs. IFRS 13 provides a precise definitibfiaar value

and a single source of fair value measurement asclodure requirements for use across IFRSs. Bisodo
requirements are enhanced and apply to all asedtdiabilities measured at fair value, not justaficial ones.
This standard has not yet been endorsed by theTBE.Group is assessing the impact of this standards

financial statements.

IFRIC 20 “Stripping costs in the production phase @& a surface mine” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013

This interpretation sets out the accounting forrbueden waste removal (stripping) costs in the potidn phase
of a mine. The interpretation may require miningjtess to write off existing stripping assets toeojng retained
earnings if the assets cannot be attributed talentifiable component of an ore body. The integdienh applies
only to stripping costs that are incurred in sugfagining activity during the production phase o thine, while
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it does not address underground mining activitgiband natural gas activity. This interpretaticasmot yet been
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Disclosuwes’ - transfers of financial assets(effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)

This amendment sets out disclosure requirements faransferred financial assets not derecognised irheir
entirety as well as on transferred financial assetderecognised in their entirety but in which the r@orting
entity has continuing involvement. It also providesguidance on applying the disclosure requirementsThe
Group is assessing the impact of this standardsdimancial statements.

IAS 12 (Amendment) “Income Taxes"(effective for annual periods beginning on or mftelanuary 2012)

The amendment to IAS 12 provides a practical apgrdar measuring deferred tax liabilities and defdrtax
assets when investment property is measured usenfpir value model in IAS 40 “Investment PropertyThis
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the Eurdppgan. The Group is assessing the impact of tfaindard
on its financial statements.

IAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Financial Staterants” (effective for annual periods beginning on or iafte
1 July 2012)

The amendment requires entities to separate itaesepted in other comprehensive income into twaiggp
based on whether or not they may be recycled tétpoloss in the future. This amendment has rett lyeen
endorsed by the EU. The Group is assessing thecingpghis standard on its financial statements.

IAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee Benefits”(effective for annual periods beginning on or attedanuary 2013)

This amendment makes significant changes to thegrétton and measurement of defined benefit pension
expense and termination benefits (eliminates theidmwr approach) and to the disclosures for all lyge
benefits. The key changes relate mainly to recagniof actuarial gains and losses, recognition adtyservice
cost / curtailment, measurement of pension expetiselosure requirements, treatment of expensestaes
relating to employee benefit plans and distinctimiween “short-term” and “other long-term” benefifhis
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EUGFbep is assessing the impact of this standardison
financial statements.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Disclosues’ (effective for annual periods beginning on oreaft
1 January 2013)

The IASB has published this amendment to include fermation that will enable users of an entity’s
financial statements to evaluate the effect or potgial effect of netting arrangements, including rights of
set-off associated with the entity’s recognised fancial assets and recognised financial liabilitiespn the
entity’s financial position. This amendment has not yet been endorsed by theTB& Group is assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Presentéion” (effective for annual periods beginning on oreaft
1 January 2014)

This amendment to the application guidance in I2Xrifies some of the requirements for offsettfimgancial

assets and financial liabilities on the statemérfinancial position. This amendment has not yetrb endorsed
by the EU.
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Group of standards on consolidation and joint arrargements(effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)

The IASB has published five new standards on cadestabn and joint arrangements: IFRS 10, IFRS ERS 12,

IAS 27 (amendment) and IAS 28 (amendment). Thes®dstds are effective for annual periods beginoimgr

after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is pewrditonly if the entire “package” of five standaidsadopted at
the same time. These standards have not yet bekmsead by the EU. The Group is in the process séssng
the impact of the new standards on its consolidfteahcial statements. The main provisions arels\is:

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control eodsolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The new stadd
changes the definition of control for the purpogedetermining which entities should be consolidatétis
definition is supported by extensive applicatioridgnce that addresses the different ways in whiclparting
entity (investor) might control another entity (@stee). The revised definition of control focusasttte need to
have both power (the current ability to direct #udivities that significantly influence returns)davariable returns
(can be positive, negative or both) before contsopresent. The new standard also includes guidamce
participating and protective rights, as well asagency/ principal relationships.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

IFRS 11 provides for a more realistic reflectionjaht arrangements by focusing on the rights abléibations of
the arrangement, rather than its legal form. Tipesyof joint arrangements are reduced to two: jop@rations
and joint ventures. Proportional consolidation oinf ventures is no longer allowed. Equity accougptis
mandatory for participants in joint ventures. Hasitthat participate in joint operations will foloaccounting
much like that for joint assets or joint operatidnslay. The standard also provides guidance fotigsathat
participate in joint arrangements but do not haietjcontrol.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informatiojuding significant judgments and assumptionsicivienable
users of financial statements to evaluate the aatigks and financial effects associated withehtty's interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangementsuandnsolidated structured entities. An entity peovide any or
all of the above disclosures without having to §gpRS 12 in its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or Hreended IAS
27 or 28.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate Financial Statements”

This Standard is issued concurrently with IFRS @@ #bgether, the two IFRSs supersede IAS Qarisolidated
and Separate Financial Statement¥he amended IAS 27 prescribes the accountingdasatbsure requirements
for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures asdociates when an entity prepares separate falestaiements.
At the same time, the Board relocated to IAS 2iregnents from IAS 28 “Investments in Associatestl 4AS
31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” regarding sepafia@ncial statements.

IAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments in Associates andaint Ventures”

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Venturesilaces IAS 28 Ifivestments in AssociatesThe
objective of this Standard is to prescribe the anting for investments in associates and to set that
requirements for the application of the equity methwhen accounting for investments in associatekjaint
ventures, following the issue of IFRS 11.
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2.3 Absorption of companies

The method of predecessor accounting was useceialiborption of PANTECHNIKI SA by the parent congpan
AKTOR SA. As a result, the assets, liabilitieshcfisws, income and expenses of the absorbed compare
included in the relevant accounts of the absorbaognpany on the date that the absorption was approve
(31.12.2011). The assets and liabilities of theoalbed company PANTECHNIKI SA were included atr theok
values.

2.4 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are economic entities in which theuprées able to govern their financial and busineskcies,
usually in conjunction with a participation in thehare capital with voting rights in excess of 50%e existence
and effect of voting rights that can be exercise¢anverted are also considered when assessinthevhihe
Group is in control of the economic entity. Therayrralso be control in cases where the holding énshare
capital with voting rights is less than 50%, bug tBroup is able to exercise control over the fifgrand business
policies on a de facto basis. There is de factdrobmwhere the number of voting rights held by tBeoup, in
relation to the number and allocation of the rigietd by other shareholders, enable the Groupéecese control
over the financial and business policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the dakemcontrol over them is acquired and cease twhsatidated
from the date when control ceases to exist.

The acquisition method of accounting is used tooawet for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the @ro
Acquisition cost is calculated as the fair valughaf assets acquired, of obligations undertaken place, and of
the financial products issued as of the date afistation.Acquisition costs are expensed as incurfée
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbilgies that are acquired during a business coatimn are valued
at the acquisition date at their fair values relgesl of the participation share. The excess betaequisition cost
and the fair value of the subsidiary’s equity shaseat the date of acquisition is recognised aslgibio If the
total cost of the acquisition is lower than the @rs portion in fair value of the identifiable assacquired, the
difference is immediately recognised in the incatatement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealga&ids on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminateg gt if the transaction provides indication of amment of the
transferred asset. The accounting principles ofstitesidiaries have been changed to ensure corwistéth the
ones adopted by the Group. In the parent compadigement of Financial Position, subsidiaries aead at
cost less impairment.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiawéhlout loss of control

Any transactions with non-controlling interesthayino effect on the control exercised by the Grouprahe
subsidiary are measured and recorded as equityaittians, i.e. they are treated in the same walyadollowed
for transactionswith the owners of the Group. Thféexbnce between the consideration paid and thevaat
share acquired in the book value of the subsidsa@guity is deducted from equity. Gain or lossesl@sposals to
non-controling interest are also recorded in equity

(c) Sale of / loss of control over subsidiary

When the Group ceases to exercise control or signif influence on a subsidiary, the retained peege is
measured at fair value, and any differences ammgrézed in results.For purposes of subsequent atiogufor the
retained interest, this asset is classified as ssodate, joint venture or financial asset, the f@ilue is the
acquisition value. In addition, any amounts preslgurecorded under Other Comprehensive Income bl
accounted for as in the case of sale of a subgidiad therefore they may be accounted for in poofloss.
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(d)  Associates

Associates are economic entities on which the Goaupexercise significant influence but not “colitrevhich is
generally the case when the Group holds a percerttagveen 20% and 50% of a company’s voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for ubm@dquity method. Under the equity method, an imvest in

an associate is recognized initially at acquisitost and the carrying amount increase or decreasebgnize the
investor’'s share of the profit or loss of the ineesafter the date of acquisition. The “Investméntassociates”
account also includes goodwill resulting on ideatifacquisition (reduced by any impairment losses).

In case of sale of a holding in an associate orchvithe Group continues, however, to exercise Saamf
influence, only the portion of amounts previoushsted directly under equity will bereclassifiedptofit or loss.

Following the acquisition, the Group’s share in tiens or losses of associates is recognized inntt@me
statement, while the share of changes in other celmemsive income following the acquisition is regiagd in
other comprehensive income. The cumulative chaatjest the carrying amount of the investments soamtes.
When the Group’s share in the losses of an asso@atequal or greater than the carrying amounthef
investment, the Group does not recognize any fultieses, unless it has incurred further obligetior made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized profits from transactions between theuprand its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
percentage ownership in the associates. Unredlizsgs are eliminated, unless the transaction ges\évidence
of impairment of the transferred asset. The acéongmirinciples of affiliates have been adjustediider to ensure
consistency to the ones adopted by the Group.dmpénent company’s statement of financial positassociates
are valued at cost less impairment.

(e)  Joint Ventures

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are antedi for on the basis of proportionate consolidatiexcept
for those which are inactive on the date of fiRRS adoption, which are consolidated using thetgguéthod as
described above)Yhe Group combines its share of the income, experessets and liabilities and cash flows of
each joint-venture with the respective figureshaf Group.

The Group recognises the portion in the gainoesds from sales of the Group to the joint-ventwiigh is
attributed to the other partners of the joint-veatd he Group does not recognise its portion ingdies or losses
of the joint-ventures which resulted from purchaskthe Group by the joint-ventures until the assetquired are
sold to a third party. Loss occurring from suchams$action is recognised directly if the loss en@s a reduction
in the net realisable value of current assets @airment. The accounting principles of the joinbttges have
been changed in order ensure consistency to the asepted by the Group. In the parent company’arical
sheet, joint ventures are valued at cost less imest.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

The items in the financial statements of the Greugdmpanies are measured in the currency of theapyi
economic environment in which the Group operatesdtional currency). The consolidated financiatesinents
are reported in Euros, which is the functional enay and the reporting currency of the parent Camyppa

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated mdunctional currency using the exchange rategaieg at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gaiddasses resulting from the settlement of suchstations
during the fiscal year and from the translatiommfetary items into foreign exchange at currergsrajpplicable
on the balance sheet date are recorded in prafitaas, except where they are transferred diréastgquity due to
being related to cash flow hedges and net invedthesiges.

Any changes to the fair value of financial secastin foreign currency designated as availablestde are
analyze into foreign exchange differences from ange to the net value of the security and othengbs due
tothe carrying amount. Foreign exchange differencesognized in profit and loss, and other diffeesare
transferred to other comprehensive income.
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Foreign currency translation from non-monetary gemat are valued at their fair value are consal@®part of
their fair value and thus are treated similarlyfa@ value differences. Foreign currency transiatin non-
financial assets and liabilities, such as sharassdied as available for sale are included in otoenprehensive
income.

(c) Group Companies

The results and financial position of all groupites (none of which has the currency of a hypéaiidnary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated th
presentation currency as follows:

i) The assets and liabilities are converted usingates in effect at the balance sheet date,

ii) The income and expenses are converted using thageveates of the period (except if the average
rate is not the reasonable approach of the acctealilmpact of the rates in effect at the datedef t
transactions, in which case income and expensesarerted using the rates in effect at the dates
of the transactions) and

iii) Any differences arising from this process are rdedrin other comprehensive income and are
transferred to the income statement upon dispdghkese companies.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the tediam of the net investment in a foreign compaay well as
of the borrowing characterised as hedging of ttne$tment are recorded in other comprehensive iactpon
disposal of a foreign company in part or in whalegcumulated exchange differences are transferrdtetmcome
statement of the period as profit or loss resulfiog the sale.

Gains and changes to fair value from the acquisitibforeign companies are deemed to be assettiadnilities
of the foreign company and are measured at theeyrrate applicable on the balance sheet datereRudting
foreign exchange differences are recorded in equity

2.6 Leases

€)) Group Company as lessee

Leases under which the risks and rewards of owiersimain with the lessor are classified as opegaleases.
Operating lease expense is recognized in the inctatement proportionally during the lease period iacludes
any restoration cost of the property if such classacluded in the leasing contract.

Leases of fixed assets where all the risks andndsmvaf ownership are maintained by the Group aaesified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalizdweanhteption of the leases at the lower of the alue of the
leased property and the present value of the mimin@ase payments. Each lease payment is apportimtegen
the reduction of the liability and the finance g®so that a fixed interest rate on the remairimantial liability is
achieved. The respective lease liabilities, nefimdince charges, are included in borrowings. The pathe
finance charge relating to finance leases is reizegrin the income statement over the term of lelis®d assets
acquired through finance leases are depreciatattioeshorter of their useful life and the leasente

(b) Group Company as lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatinggedea3perating lease income is recognized in thennec
statement of each period proportionally over grentof the lease.
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2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are reported in the financial staté&reracquisition cost less accumulated depreciati@ possible
impairment. The acquisition cost includes all tireatly attributable expenses for the acquisitibthe assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrayhount or recognized as a separate asset, apapfe, only
when it is probable that future economic benefisogiated with the asset will flow to the Group #mel cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The repair amidtenance cost is recorded in the profit and lag®n such is
realized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other PP&lculated using the straight line method oweirtuseful
life as follows:

- Buildings 40 vyears
- Mechanical equipment 5.7 years
- Vehicles 5.7 years
- Other equipment 5-7 Yyears

The residual values and useful economic life of RRESubject to reassessment at least at eacttbalheet date.

When the book values of tangible assets exceedridmverable value, the difference (impairmenteisognised
in the income statement as expense (note 2.10).

Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between thegads and the depreciable amount is recordednagydoss
in the income statement.

Financial expenses directly attributable tothe trmietion of assets are being capitalized for theogeneededup
to the completion of the construction. All otherdncial expenses are recognized in the incomenstate

2.8 Intangible assets

(@ Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between acdaisitost and the fair value of the subsidiary’siBgshare as
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising frorwqaisitions of subsidiaries is recognised in intalegassets.
Goodwill is not depreciable, is tested for impamhannually and recognised at cost, less any nmeait losses.
Goodwill losses cannot be reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill lis@ated to cash generating units. Allocation isdm#o those
units or cash generating unit groups which are egueto benefit from the business combinations Wwhic
generated goodwill, and is monitored at the theatpey segment level.

Profit and losses from the disposal of an undemtaknclude the book value of the goodwill of thedartaking
sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and loss
(b) Software

Software licenses are valued at acquisition cast teepreciation. Depreciation is accounted for wWith straight
line method over the useful lives which vary frornto13 years.

(1) / (77)



AKTOR SA
‘ Annual Financial statements in accordance with IFRS
AKTDR for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2011
p y

29 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life are notanmzet, and are subject to impairment testing on awarbasis, or
when certain events or changes to the circumstaseggest that their carrying value may not be recae.

Assets that are amortizationare subject to impaitnestingwhen indications exist that their bookueais not
recoverable. Impairment loss is recognised foratmunt by which the fixed asset's carrying valueeess its
recoverable value. The recoverable value is thedrietween the fair value, reduced by the costired, for the
disposal, and the value in use (current value sfi dows anticipated to be generated based on gmagement’'s
estimates of future financial and operating cond#). For the calculation of impairment lossesetssreare
grouped at the lowest levels for which there amassely identifiable cash generating units. Anyfioancial

assets, apart from goodwill, which have been ingubaire reassessed for possible impairment revensahch
balance sheet date.

2.10 Financial Assets
2.10.1 Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beasdified in the following categories based onghepose for
which each investment was undertaken. Managemetarrdines the classification at initial recognition

(@) Financial assets valued at fair value througbffi or loss

This class comprises financial assets held foiirigadDerivatives are classified as held for tragianless they are
designated as hedges. Assets falling under thegost are recorded in the current assets if theyhatd for
trading purposes or are expected to be sold witAimonths from the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets fikéd or predefined payments which are not tradedn active
market. They are included in current assets, exftepthose with maturities greater than 12 montfierahe

balance sheet date. These are classified as nognt@ssets. Loans and receivables are includditrade and
other receivables account in the Statement of [EiaéRosition.

(c) Available for sale financial assetes

These include non-derivative financial assets &nateither designated as such or cannot be inclindaaly of the
previous categories. They are included in nonenirassets unless management intends to dispostherh
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

2.10.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchase and sales of financial assets argmiseal for on the trade-date, which is the datevbith the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Imegstis are initially recognised at their fair valpls expenses
directly attributed to the transaction, excepttfuwse carried at fair value through profit or loSgancial assets
valued at fair value through profit or loss ardiatly recognised at fair value, and transactioqpenses are
recognised in the income statement in the periey tirere incurred. Investments are eliminated wherright on
cash flows from the investments ends or is transfieand the Group has transferred in effect dtbrand rewards
implied by the ownership.

Subsequently, financial assets held for sale ar@suored at fair value and gains or losses from awnip fair
value are recorded in other comprehensive incolindhdise assets are sold or designated as impdiheon sale
or when assets are impaired, the gains or lossesransferred to the income statement. Impairniesges
recognised inthe income statement may not be regi¢hsough profit and loss.

Loans and receivables, as well as financial adsststo maturity are recognised initially at famlwe and are
measured subsequently amortized cost based offf¢lctivee rate method.

The realized and unrealized profits or lossesragigiom changes in the fair value of financial &ssehich are
valued at fair value throughprofit and loss, a@omized in the income statementof the periodwheuri
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The fair values of financial assets that are traitledctive markets are defined by their prices. Ron-traded
assets, fair values are defined using valuatiohnigoies such as analysis of recent transactiomaparative
items that are traded and discounted cash flows.

2.10.3 Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilite

Financial receivables and liabilities are offsetl ghe net amount is presented in the Statementir@nEial
position only where the Group or Company holdsldgal right to do so and intends to offset themaoclear
basis between them or to retrieve the financiateesd offset the liability at the same time.

2.10.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemnthetie is objective evidence that a financiattesa group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case oftggecurities classified as held for sale, a digant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below @sst is considered as an indicator that the d@esirare
impaired.If there is objective evidence of impainheaccumulated loss in equity which is the differe between
the cost of acquisition and the fair value shall tobensferred over to the income statement. Impaitnosses of
equity instruments recognised in the income stattr@me not reversed through the income statemeaverRal of
security impairments are recognized in profit ossldf the increase in the fair value of these iteran be
correlated objectively to a certain event that tptaice after recognition of impairment loss in irof loss.

If there is objective evidence that financial asdedld to maturity and presented at net book aitiguissalue have
been impaired, the amount of impairment loss isudated as the difference between their carryingevand the
current value of estimated future cash flows (ekéepfuture losses from credit risks not yet reatl), discounted
at the initial effective rate. Impairment lossedin&ncial assets held to maturity recognised ofits or losses.

The impairment test for receivables is describenbite 2.12.

2.11 Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of acquisitost and net realisable value. The cost is céakdlasing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of end ptedaind semi-finished inventories includes costledign,
materials, direct labour cost and a proportiorhefgeneral cost of production.

Investment property to which a construction ing&timing at a future sale are re-classified asntories at book
value at the balance sheet date. Subsequent meesres calculated at the lowest value betweerctst and
net realisable value. Financial expenses are whided in the acquisition cost of inventories. Tied realizable
value is estimated based on the stock’s curretihgeadrice, in the ordinary course of businesss lasy possible
selling expenses, wherever such a case occurs.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fafue and subsequently measured at amortized so®j the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not material, less provision for impainteA
provision for impairment of trade receivables itabfished when there is objective evidence thatGheup will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due, atiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papershates receivable from customers.

If the customer encounters serious problems , tssipility of bankruptcy or financial reorganizatiand the
inability of scheduled payments are consideredendd that the receivable value must be impaired. arhount
of the provision is the difference between the &s®arrying value and the present value of esgéahdiiture cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest ratee Bmount of the provision is recognized as an res@eén the
income statement.
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2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight depasd short-term investments of up to 3 montith high
liquidity and low risk.

2.14  Share capital

The share capital includes the Company’s ordinleres. Whenever, any Group company purchasesssbfre
the Company (Own shares), the consideration pamkdicted from equity attributable to the Groupygity
holders until the shares are cancelled or dispo§etihe profit or loss from the sale of own shasesecognised
directly to equity. Expenses directly attribute@ dine issue of shares deducted from equity nenhpfrelevant
income tax benefit,.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair valuet of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings aresequently
stated at net book cost, using the effective isterate method. Any difference between the procéeds of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgmrized in the income statement over the period hef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Any borrowing expenses paid upon execution of nesdit agreements are recognized as borrowing eggens
provided that part or all of the new credit linewighdrawn. In this case, they are recorded asréuborrowing
expenses until withdrawal is made. If the new beings are not used, in part or in all, these experare
included in prepaid expenses and are recognizpobiit or loss during the useful life of the relew&redit line.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Group has an unconditional right to dsétlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the lvela sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the fiscal year comprises currert deferred taxation. Tax is recognised in the ine@tatement,
unless relevant to amounts recognised in other celmemsive income or directly in equity. In thiseasx is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equagpectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordancthiilie tax legislation established as of the baaiezet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgresad as expense in the period during which pnuis
generated. Management regularly evaluates the e#se® the applicable tax legislation requiresrimtetation.
Where necessary, estimates are made for the amexpested to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is determined using the ligbithethod on temporary differences arising betwinentax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgmgpunts, as shown in the financial statements. ddferred

income tax is not accounted for if it arises framtial recognition of an asset or liability in alfrsaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time @fthnsaction affects neither the accounting ottdlkable gains
or losses. Deferred tax is determined using thedtes and enacted of the date of the balance, sirebexpected
to apply when the deferred tax receivables willrealized or deferred tax liabilities will be setl

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extentttiere could be future taxable gains to useteéh®orary
difference that gives rise to the deferred taxetsss

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset ahthe offsetting of tax assets and liabilitiespsrmitted by law,

and provided that deferred tax assets and liasliire determined by the same tax authority taakeaying
entity or different entities, and the intention leeen expressed to proceed to settlement by waffaaft.
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2.17 Employee benefits

(@) Post-employmertienefits

Employee benefits after retirement include defigedtribution programs and defined benefit progranie
accrued cost of defined contribution programs é@gaized as expense during the relevant period.

The liability that is reported in the Statementafancial Position with respect to this scheméésgresent value
of the liability for the defined benefit less tharfvalue of the scheme’s assets (if there are)samth the changes
that arise from any actuarial profit or loss and #ervice cost. The liability of defined benefitdalculated
annually by an independent actuary with the ugbd@projected unit credit method. The interest caitdong-term
Greek treasury bonds is used for discounting p@RoBue to the current financial circumstances,Bhmpean
Central Bank bond curve was used instead of Gregkrgment bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustmbated on historical data which are less or mae 0% of the
accumulated liability are posted to the income estent over the average remaining service liveshef t
employees participating in the plan. Current sendgaost is directly recognized in the income statgnegcept for
the case where the scheme’s changes depend omfiieyees’ remaining service with the company. lohsa
case the service cost is recognized in the incsta@ment using the straight line method within tiegurity
period.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisinated before the normal retirement date, loerwan
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchamgenése benefits. The Group recognizes termindtérefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: teratiimg the employment of current employees accortiing
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdval; or providing termination benefits as a resfltan offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefiliagadue more than 12 months after balance shat dre
discounted.

In case of employment termination where the nunob@mployees to use such benefits cannot be detednihe
benefits are disclosed as contingent liability, &ne not accounted for.

2.18 Provisions
Provisions for environmental restoration and disduictions are recognized when: there is an oldigglegal or

constructive) as a result of past events, thettesaént through an outflow of resources is proballé the exact
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

2.19 Revenue recognition
Income mainly arises from construction projectgraging leases and production and trade of quaypyinducts.

Revenue and profit from construction contracts r@ognised according to IAS 11 as described in 2020
hereinafter.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized innt@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentidtstclients, the cost of these incentives is gaixed through
the lease period with the straight line method d&dely of the income from the lease.

Income from the provision of services and realtestaanagement are recorded in the period duringiwtiie
services are rendered, based on the stage of coonpdd the service in relation to total servicese provided.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basiisguthe effective rate method. In case of impaimmef

borrowings and receivables, interest income is geised using the rate which discounts future fldas
impairment purposes.
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In the case where the Group acts as a representditiis the commission and not the gross revehag it
accounted for as revenue.

Dividends are accounted for as income when the t@teceive payment is established.

2.20 Contracts for projects under construction

A construction contract is a contract specificailggotiated for the construction of an asset orrahbioation of
assets that are closely interrelated or interdegr@noh terms of their design, technology and florctor their
ultimate purpose or use.

Expenses associated with construction contracteeamgnised in the period in which they are inadirre

When the outcome of a construction contract cabeateliablyestimated, only the expenses realizeekpected
to be collected are recognised as income fromahé&act.

When the result of a construction contract candtiably estimated, such contract’s income and egegmill be
recognised during the term of contract as incont edpenses, respectively. The Group uses the gageof
completion method to estimate the appropriate amoéinncome and expense to be recognised for aicert
period. The stage of completion is calculated thamethe expenses which have been realised ugetbalance
sheet date compared to the total estimated expémseach contract. If it is estimated that th@keost of the
contract will exceed total income, then anticipdtesses are directly recognised in profit and Esexpenses.

In order to determine the cost realised by the @rithe period, any expenses relating to futuregaskluded in
the contract are exempted and presented as wqutogress. The total realised cost and recognisetfit p loss
for each contract is compared with sequential icestill the end of the fiscal year.

Where the realised expenses plus the net profis (lesses) recognised exceed the sequential irsyvoibe
occurring difference is presented as a receivabi@ construction contract customers in the acctlirdde and
other receivables”. When the sequential invoiceseed the realised expenses plus the net profis (kesses)
recognised, the balance is presented as a liabiltsards construction contract customers in th@aec“Trade
and other payables”.

2.21 Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends to equity holderstbé parent company is recognised as liability wtistribution
is approved by the General Meeting of the sharedeld

2.22 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at thivalue where there is a reasonable assuramatehé grant
will be received and the Group will comply with atipulated conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferrgdracognized in the income statement to match twémthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fisseta or the construction of projects are includddng term
liabilities as deferred government grants and aoegnized as income through profit and loss udnegstraight
line method according to the asset expected ubfful

2.23 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets hekhlie and stated at the lower of carrying amoudtfair value

less costs to sell if their carrying amount isreastied to be recovered by the Group through a safsdction
rather than through their use.
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2.24 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are usually obligations to make paynfor products or servicesacquired during thenaiy
course of business fom suppliers. Accounts payat@elassified as current liabilities if the paymisrdue within
not more than one year. If not, they are classidieshon-current liabilities. Trade payables aregeaized initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at aradrtisst using the effective interest method.

2.25 Rounding of accounts

The numbers contained in these financial stateneamis been rounded to thousand Euros. Possibkretiifes
that may occur are due to rounding.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to several financial riskshsas market risks (macroeconomic conditions inGineek
market, changes to prices for the purchase of prpp@aw materials, such as iron and cement, foreigchange
risk, interest rate risk, etc.), credit risk arglidity risk. Financial risks are associated with following financial
instruments: accounts receivable, cash and casivadepis, accounts payable and other liabilitiesl aebt
liabilities. The accounting principles referrecthe above financial instruments are presented ie [0

Risk management is monitored by the finance dinisiand more specifically by the central Financial
Management Division of the Group, and is determibgdlirectives, guidelines and rules approved leyBbard

of Directors with regard to rate risk, credit rigke use of derivative and non-derivative instrutegand the
short-term investment of cash.

€) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business sectors atlee Group operates. Indicatively, the Group jzosed to the
risk resulting from a change to the conditions piknvg in the domestic and foreign constructiontseca change
in raw material prices, a change in the value ropprties, along with risks associated with the pletion of

projects undertaken by joint ventures. The Grodggartments are closely monitoring the trends éninldividual

markets in which it operates and plan actions fompt and efficient adaptation to the individualrkes’ new

circumstances.

(i) Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

The macroeconomic conditions prevailing in Greeoel éhe financial condition of the Greek State have
deteriorated significantly and this has had a $icamt effect on the activities of the Group and thompany, to
the results of their activities, their financialnoiition (frozen concession projects, reductionHe tonstruction
activity in Greece, lack of resources for financimey projects, reduced turnover, etc.).

According to existing official predictions, thereilistill be economic recession in 2012, while theeasures
implemented in connection with public finances arpected to make the conditions in the local maeken
worse. Therefore, the Group is applying a strategying at diversifying its activities and boostirits

international presence with a view to offsetting thduction in domestic activity. Although thisatfis met with
several challenges (difficulty in penetrating fgreimarkets, lack of support from international @rétktitutions,

etc.), the first encouraging signs are being oleskras certain projects have been undertaken mainthe

Balkans (e.g. Albania, Bulgaria, Serbia, Croatta,)e

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has been active in foreign countriesjniydn the Middle East and the Balkans (Romanialdaria,
Albania, etc.). With respect to its activities imetMiddle East, the Group is exposed to foreigrharge risk
relating mainly to the exchange rates of local encies (e.g. AED, QAR, RON, etc.) and the US Dcoldturo
exchange rate. It should be noted that the excheaige of certain currencies (mainly local curreadn Middle
East countries) are linked to the US Dollar. Prdsegre made in local currency and in US Dollarsdaspite the
fact that the larger portion of the cost and expsrase made in the same currency, a foreign exehasigexists
for the remaining part, which was not significamtthe fiscal year. Foreign exchange risk, wheis @onsidered
to be significant and worthy of being hedged, Wil hedged by the use of derivative forward condrathese
derivatives are priced at their fair values andraodgnized as an asset or a liability in therfaial statements.
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(iiif) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair ua& change due to a change in interest rates

Group holds as an asset significant accrued ingtngsncomprising of sight deposits and short ternklzkeposits.
The Group is exposed to risk from fluctuationsrerest rates, arising from bank loans with flogiates. The
Group is exposed to floating interest rates prengiin the market, which affect both the finangakition and the
cash flows. Cost of debt may increase as a refuhese changes thus creating losses or it caredseron the
occurrence of unexpected events. It should be nbi@dthe fluctuation in interest rates in recesang has been
caused primarily by the increase in spreads duthdolack of liquidity in the Greek banking marketdathe
estimated risk of Greek companies, and to a lesdent by the increase in base interest rateskeugpor).

As regards long-term borrowings, the Group’s Mamaget systematically and constantly monitors interate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpweaitions to hedge risks, when and if necessarthé context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ies¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

The majority of Group borrowings are linked to fiog rates and the largest part of borrowings isoaieinated in
Euro. As a consequence interest rate risk is piiynderived from the fluctuations of Euro interastes and
secondly from the interest rate fluctuations oreotturrencies in which bank loans exist (US DollgED, Qatari
riyal, etc).

The Group constantly monitors interest rate treadswell as the maturity and nature of subsidsafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theioplétetween variable and fixed interest rate anesictered
separately on a case by case basis.

(iv) Price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk relating to thetflation of the fair value of its financial assatsilable for sale
which can affect the financial statements, as elégains or losses from fair value adjustmentshelrecorded
as a reserve under equity until these assets Et@isdesignated as impaired. It should be poitgtthat, if the
closing price of EGU on 31/12/2011 was increasediézreased) by 5%, the reserves available forvgaldd be
increased (or decreased, respectively) by €14anilli

(b) Credit Risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enthattransactions are conducted with customesaufficient

credit rating. Due to the conditions prevailingtie market, credit line approval results from écstr procedure
that involves all senior management levels. Theu@roas been monitoring its debtors’ balances vargfally,

and where receivables with credit risk are idegtifithey are assessed in accordance with establshieies and
procedures and an appropriate impairment provisiéormed.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and firlatei@ative contracts potentially involve credik as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaifiyréato fulfil their obligations towards the Groum order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitsht® degree of exposure for each financial institytieithin the
scope of the policies of the Board f Directors. Du¢he current debt crisis experienced by thedétl Republic,
the credit rating of Greek banks has been lowered.
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(c) Liquidity Risk

In order to deal with liquidity risk, the Group hbsen budgeting and monitoring its cash flows aeeds for
credit lines in general (e.g. needs for financlegers of guarantee, etc.). The Group has beémgttyg ensure that
there is available cash, along with unused bandtitcliees in order to be able to meet its needs.

Positive developments in the current environmeciuihe the new Financial Support Programme to Gregdbe
EU and the IMF, in conjunction with a potential dual fiscal adjustment and an improvement of segnitnm the
Greek economy.

During the year, the Group has managed to refingadeorrowings that matured in 2011, while negatizs are
under way for refinancing the borrowings that wallmature in 2012.

Group liquidity is monitored on regular intervalg Management. The following table presents an aimlgf

Group debt maturities as of 31 December 2011 ad@ P&spectively:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP FIGURES

31 December 2011
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5

year and 2years and5years years Total
Trade and other payables 408,847 8,012 - - 416,858
Finance leases 127 78 42 - 248
Borrowings 206,556 44,959 14,290 - 265,805

31 December 2010
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5

year and2years and5years years Total
Trade and other payables 382,077 2,430 - - 384,507
Finance leases 2,935 145 99 44 3,224
Borrowings 260,314 14,499 30,947 - 305,760
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COMPANY FIGURES

31 December 2011
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Between 1 Between 2
Within 1 year and 2years  and 5 years Total

Trade and other payables 306,980 5,494 - 312,474
Borrowings 130,602 43,004 - 173,606

31 December 2010
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Between 1 Between 2
Within 1 year and 2years  and 5 years Total

Trade and other payables 234,956 11 - 234,968
Borrowings 100,336 764 30,188 131,289

The above amounts are presented in the contractualdiscounted cash flows and therefore will mabncile to
disclosed in the financial statements under Trace @ther payables, Liabilities from leasing aciest and
Borrowings.

Trade and Other payables breakdown is excludivsdeances from customers, Amounts due to custorfers
construction contracts, and Social security anératiixes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis of Group Borrowngs

A reasonable and possible interest rate changerdyty five base points (0.25% increase/decreasa)diead to
a decrease / increase in earnings before taxggéwr2011, all other variables being equal, by hblisand Euros
(2010: €720 thousand). It is noted that the aforgiored change in profit before taxes is calculaiedhe loan
balances at year end and does not include theiymsiffect of interest income from cash depositd aash
equivalents.

At parent company level, a reasonable and posgidgest rate change by twenty five base point25%.
increase/decrease) would lead to a decrease /aBerim earnings before taxes for the year 2011pthkr
variables being equal, by €411 thousand (2010: €Bibdisand). It should be noted that the aforemeato
change in profit before taxes is calculated onflibating rate loan balances at year end and doegaode the
positive effect of interest income from cash detsoand cash equivalents.

(d) Other risks — additional tax charges
In previous years, the Greek State imposed extigang tax contributions that had a significant effen the

results of the Group and the Company. Given theeatirfinancial condition of the Greek State, adudfitil tax
measures may be implemented, which could have atinegeffect on the financial position of the Group

3.2 Capital management

Capital management is aiming in the safeguard ef d¢bntinuity of operations of Group companies, the
achievement of its developing plans along with @moaredit rating
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In evaluating of Group’s credit rating, the Groupt®rrowings debt must be evaluated (i.e. totaylterm and
short term liabilities to financial institutions mis cash and cash equivalents).

The Group’s net borrowings as of 31.12.2011 areiléet in the following table:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

Current bank borrowings 193,145 250,262
Non-current bank loans 56,582 43,965
Total borrowings 249,726 294,227
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 126,251 181,328
Net Debt/Cash 123,475 112,899
Total Group Equity 459,449 389,921
Total Capital 582,924 502,820
Gearing Ratio 0.212 0.225

The capital leverage ratio as of 31.12.2011 for@neup is calculated at 21.2 %. This ratio is cllmd as the
guotient of net debt to total employed capital. fiotal equity plus net debt).

At parent company level, total borrowings as 0f1212011 stood at €164.3 million and represent H@nm
borrowings of €41.7 million, and short-term borrags of €122.6 million.

As of 31.12.2011, the Group’s cash stood at €186lBon. €. Finally, equity as of 31.12.2011 stoatd€459.4
million. €.

3.3 Fair value determination

The financial assets measured at fair value alseobalance sheet date are classified under trenioly levels, in
accordance with the method used for determininig fai value:

- Level 1: for assets traded in an active marked amose fair value is determined by the marketgaric
(unadjusted) of similar assets.

- Level 2: for assets whose fair value is deterihibg factors related to market data, either diyegtkices) or
indirectly (prices derivatives).

- Level 3: for assets whose fair value is not dateed by observations from the market, but is nyabdsed on
internal estimates.

The following table presents the Group’s finaneissets and liabilities at fair value as of 31 Ddoen2011 and
31 December 2010:

Amounts in ,000 EUR 31 December 2011
GROUP FIGURES
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
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Financial assets

Available for sale financial assets 280,058 27 285,

Amounts in ,000 EUR 31 December 2010
GROUP FIGURES
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial assets

Available for sale finanacial assets 372 24 396

The following table presents the changes to LevBh@ncial assets for the fiscal years ended ob8tember
2011 and 31 December 2010:

Amounts in ,000 EUR 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
GROUP FIGURES GROUP FIGURES
LEVEL 3 LEVEL 3

Financial Financial

assets assets

available for available for

sale TOTAL sale TOTAL
At beginning of yeaar 24 24 32 32
Disposal of subsidiary N N 4 4
Additions for the period 3 3
(Sales) - - (5) (5)
At year end 27 27 24 24

The fair value of financial assets traded on actir@rkets (e.g. derivatives, stocks, bonds, mufwadls), is
determined on the basis of the prices publiclylaizéé at the balance sheet date. An “active” magkests where
there are readily available and regularly revisedes, which are published by the stock market, eyooroker,
sector, rating organization or supervising orgaiora These financial tools are included in levelThis level
includes mainly the Group investment realized byREMPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU), which is listed on
the Toronto Stock Exchange and has been classifiedfinancial asset available for sale.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments of thenanagement

Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluateare based on historic data and expectationfutiore
events, they are considered reasonable underrthenstances.
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4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accompannotes and reports may involve certain judgmentd
calculations that refer to future events regardipgrations, developments, and financial performaofcéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the lbsastiybe
knowledge of the Company's and the Group's managemith regard to current conditions and actio® t
actual results may eventually differ from calcidas and assumptions taken into consideration impteparation
of the Company's and the Group's annual finanta¢ments.

Significant accounting estimetes and assumptiors thvolve important risk of causing future matéria
adjustments to the assets’ and liabilities’ bookies:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting treatn@rdonstruction projects according to IAS 11
“Construction Contracts”

(i) Recognition of revenue from construction contrabtssed on estimation of the percentage of
completion of the project.

For the estimation of the percentage of completibthe construction projects in progress according
which the Group recognizes income from constructammtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses yet to be made until the complefithe projects.

(i)  Requests for compensation for additional work niaelgond the contractual agreement.

The Group’s Management estimates the amount toebeived for additional work and recognizes
income under the percentage of completion as lenig @nsiders that the collection of this amownt i
probable.

(b) Provisions

(i) Income tax

Estimates are required in determining the provis@mrincome taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oféhe
matters is different from the amounts that werdiatly recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.

(i)  Provisions for disputed cases

There are pending disputed cases concerning tbepGThe Management assesses the outcome of
these case and, where a negative outcome is pmssitd Group forms the required provisions.
Provisions, where required, are calculated on #measbof the present value of the estimates made by
management of the cost to be incurred for settlirggexpected liabilities as of the Balance Shetd.da
The present value is based on a number of fadtatgéquires the exercise of judgment.

(c)Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuation
methods which require using assumptions and judtgn@&he Group makes assumptions based mostly
on current market conditions in the preparatiofirgncial statements.
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Distinction between investment property and assetsl by the Group.

The Group determines whether an asset is charaeteds investment property. In order to form the
relevant assumption, the Group considers the extemthich a property generates cash flows, for the
most part independently of the rest of the assetsed by the company. Assets used by the Group
generate cash flows which are attributed not omlthe properties but also to other assets usedreith
the production procedure or to the purchasing proe
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5 Property, plant and equipment

GROUP FIGURES

Furniture &
Land & other PPE under
Amounts in ,000 EUR buildings Vehicles Machinery equipment  construction Total
Cost
1-Jan-10 67,854 38,736 212,793 24,757 5,942 350,082
Foreign currency translation (25) 158 2,456 1,328 - 3,917
Disposal of subsidiary (144) 3) (1,337) (20) - 4a4)
Acquisition of a J/V 1 50 3 - - 54
Additions except for leasing 1,847 1,276 8,158 2,94 2,065 16,292
Additions with leasing - - 86 - - 86
Disposals (2,647) (1,758) (6,470) (1,014) (103) (11,993)
Transfer from/ investment properties -
Reclassifications from PPE under
construction (3,300) - 2,096 - 1,203 -
31-Dec-10 63,586 38,459 217,785 28,006 9,107 356,943
1-Jan-11 63,586 38,459 217,785 28,006 9,107 356,943
Foreign currency translation (82) ©) 796 499 (2) ,205
Acquisition of subsidiary 12,644 1,824 287 41 - D8,
Disposal of participation quota in JV (75) (210) 3 4) - (2,221)
Absorption of Pantechniki 10,667 53 1,664 21 - 12,404
Additions except for leasing 731 181 2,585 741 810 5,048
Disposals (772) (3,414) (20,196) (200) (132) (24,714)
Reclassifications from PPE under
construction 18 - 4,322 - (4,340) -
31-Dec-11 86,716 36,884 206,311 29,105 5,444 364,460
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-10 (6,645) (26,718) (123,186) (14,601) - (171,150)
Foreign currency translation (29) (29) (829) (647) - (1,524)
Depreciation for the period (1,898) (3,622) (23434 (5,033) - (33,987)
Disposals 35 1,211 3,315 905 - 5,465
31-Dec-10 (8,527) (29,158) (144,135) (19,376) - (201,195)
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-11 (8,527) (29,158) (144,135) (19,376) - (201,195)
Foreign currency translation (36) (12) (769) (539) - (1,355)
Depreciation for the period (1,829) (2,824) (17)733 (4,098) - (26,484)
Disposals 94 2,840 15,430 175 - 18,539
31-Dec-11 (10,297) (29,153) (147,207) (23,838) - 10(295)
Net book value as of 31 December 2010 55,060 9,301 73,650 8,631 9,107 155,748
Net book value as of 31 December 2011 76,419 7,731 59,105 5,267 5,444 153,966
Leased assets included in above data under firlaase:
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Vehicles Machinery Total Vehicles Machinery Total
Cost — Capitalised financial
leases 134 2,030 2,164 134 1,910 2,044
Accumulated depreciation (134) (1,592) (1,726) (53) (1,232) (1,285)
Net book value - 438 438 81 678 759
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COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Cost

1-Jan-10

Foreign currency translation
Additions except for leasing
Disposals

Reclassifications from PPE under

construction
31-Dec-10

1-Jan-11

Foreign currency translation
Absorption of Pantechniki
Additions except for leasing
Disposals

31-Dec-11

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-10

Foreign currency translation
Depreciation for the period
Disposals

31-Dec-10

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-11

Foreign currency translation
Depreciation for the period
Disposals

31-Dec-11

Net book value as of 31 December

2010

Net book value as of 31 December

2011

No liens exist on fixed assets.

Furniture PPE under
Land & & other constructi
buildings Vehicles Machinery  equipment Total
25,756 25,897 130,723 8,280 1,211 191,868
(8) ) 18 5 - 8
749 967 9,619 270 500 12,105
(34) (1,024) (943) (14) - (2,015)
(3,300) - - - 3,300 -
23,163 25,834 139,417 8,540 5,011 201,965
23,163 25,834 139,417 8,540 5,011 201,965

(15) (18) 3 3) 1) 4)3
10,667 53 1,612 20 - 12,351

318 779 1,801 394 41 ,333

(28) (2,097) (6,103) (3) (132) (8,364)
34,104 24,550 136,729 8,949 4,920 209,252
(1,592) (20,961) (92,727) (6,819) - (128D
1 5 (14) 2) - (20)
(262) (1,449) (9,040) 612) - (11,363)

34 851 687 14 - 1,586
(1,819) (21,554) (101,094) (7,419) - (886)
(1,819) (21,554) (101,094) (7,419) - (BBB)

1 5 (10) 2 - (6)
(301) (2,290) (8,368) 448) - (10,404)

28 1,937 4,351 1 - 6,317
(2,090) (20,902) (105,121) (7,866) - (286)
21,344 4,280 38,323 1,121 5,011 70,079
32,014 3,648 31,608 1,083 4,920 73,272
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6 Intangible assets

GROUP FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Software Goodwill Other Total
Cost
1-Jan-10 2,484 6,799 40 9,323
Foreign currency translation 41 - - 41
Disposal of subsidiary - (2,477) - (1,477)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - - - 0
Additions 37 - - 37
Disposals (66) - - (66)
31-Dec-10 2,496 5,323 40 7,859
1-Jan-11 2,496 5,323 40 7,859
Foreign currency translation 18 - - 18
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 5 4 6 15
Additions 116 - - 116
Disposals (25) (6) (31)
31-Dec-11 2,610 5,327 40 7,976
Accumulated amortization
1-Jan-10 (2,264) - (10) (2,274)
Foreign currency translation (28) - - (28)
Depreciation for the period (149) - (20) (159)
Disposals 66 - - 66
31-Dec-10 (2,376) - (20) (2,396)
1-Jan-11 (2,376) - (20) (2,396)
Foreign currency translation (21) - - (21)
Depreciation for the period (105) - (20) (115)
Disposals 25 - 0 25
31-Dec-11 (2,477) - (30) (2,507)
Net book value as of 31 December 2010 120 5,323 20 5,463
Net book value as of 31 December 2011 133 5,327 10 5,469

No acquisitions took place in FY 2010, therefoas provided for in IFRS 3, any goodwill arisingidg FY
2011, , has not been finalised.

Goodwill of 4 thousand recorded in the currentigebresulted from the consolidation of ILIAKI ADERE
SA using the full consolidation method, after tieenpany was acquired by ELLAKTOR SA.
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COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Cost
1-Jan-10
Additions
Disposals
31-Dec-10

1-Jan-11

Foreign currency translation
Additions

31-Dec-11

Accumulated amortization
1-Jan-10

Amortization for the period
Disposals

31-Dec-10

1-Jan-11

Amortization for the period
31-Dec-11

Net book value as of 31 December 2010

Net book value as of 31 December 2011

COMPANY FIGURES

Software Total
1,377 1,377
1 1
3) (3)
1,375 1,375
1,375 1,375
(1) (1)
51 51
1,425 1,425
(1,336) (1,336)
(5) (5)
3 3
(1,337) (1,337)
(1,337) (1,337)
(15) (15)
(1,352) (1,352)
38 38
73 73
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7 Group Investment

7.aThe companies of the Group consolidated with tilecbnsolidation method are:

PARENT %
REGISTER INDIREC UNAUDITED
S/N COMPANY ED OFFICE DIRECT T TOTAL YEARS
1 AKTOR FM SA GREECE 65% 65.00% 2010-2011
2 BIOSAR ENERGY SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2009-2011
3 D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010-2011
4 HELLENIC QUARRIES SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2008-2011
5 GREEK NURSERIES SA GREECE S0% 50.00% 2010-2011
6 ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 99.80% 99.80% 2006-2011
7 ILIAKI ADERES SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010-2011
8 KASTOR SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010-2011
9 NEMO MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 99.80% 99.80% 2006-2011
10 PANTECHNIKI SA-D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA OE GREEC 0% 30% 100.00% 2010-2011
11 PLO —KAT SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010-2011
12 TOMI SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2008-2011
13 PSITALIA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 66.67% 66.67% 2005-2011
14 AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100% 100.00% 2009-2011
15 AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2003-2011
16 AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2009-2011
17 AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT 100% 100.00% 2009-2011
18 AKTOR QATAR WLL QATAR 100% 100.00% 2011
19 AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2009-2011
20 AKTOR SUDAN LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2011
21 AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC UAE 0% 70.00% -
22 AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE 50% 50.00% -
23 BAQTOR MINING SUDAN 90% 90.00% -
24 BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2011
25 BURG MACHINARY BULGARIA 100% 100.00% 2008-2011
26 CAISSON SA GREECE 85% 85.00% 2010-2011
27 DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV WE 40% 30% 70.00% -
28 GENERAL GULF HOLDINGS SPC BAHRAIN 100% 100.00% 2006-2011
29 GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2005-2011
30 INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA 67.02% 67.02% 1997-2011
31 JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV UAE 40% 30% 70.00% -
MILLENNIUM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT & 100% 100.00%

32 TRADING UAE -
33 SC AKTOROM SRL ROMANIA 100% 100.00% 2002-2011
34 SVENON INVESTMENTS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2007-2011
35 VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2008-2011

The following subsidiaries were included in the solidated financial statements as of 31.12.2011tHerfirst
time, but had not been included as of 31.12.28%@hey were established in 2011:
» AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD

AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD is established in Cyprus aedgages in construction activitnAKTOR
CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD has a 100% holding ithis company, with the participation cost
amounting to €60 thousand. The company is the pamnpany of associate AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD.
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» AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD

AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD is established in Cyprut was established with a view to ensuring the
activity of AKTOR in RussiaAKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD has a 100% holdjrin this
company, with the participation cost amounting takousand.

» AKTOR SUDAN LTD

AKTOR SUDAN LTD is established in CyprudaKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD has a
100% holding in this company, with the participatimost amounting to €1 thousand. It is the paréBAQTOR
MINING CO LTD.

» BAQTOR MINING CO LTD

BAQTOR MINING CO LTD is established in Sudan. AKTCBRUDAN LTD has a 90% holding in this company,
with the participation cost amounting to €26 thaukaThe company’s objective is research and devedop
related to the concession of a mine in Sudan.

» BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD

BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD is established in CyprusSKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD has a
100% holding in this company, with the participaticost amounting to €1 thousand. The company’sctibgeis
to participate in international tender procedurstiie construction of photovoltaic projects. Ittpapates by 5%
in a Joint Venture engaging in the constructiomploadtovoltaic projects in Bulgaria (AKTOR BULGARIA090,
AKTOR SA 2.5%, BIOSAR SA 2.5%).

» AKTOR QATAR WLL

AKTOR QATAR WLL is established in Qatar. The pareAKTOR SA, participates with 100% in this company,
with the participation cost of €41 thousand.

Moreover, the following subsidiaries were first clided in the consolidated financial statementsofs
31.12.2011, but had not been incorporated on 301D, as they were acquired in 2011:

» VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD

VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD is established in CyprusA KTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD has a
100% holding in this company, with the participaticost amounting to €9,911 thousand. Further, BURG
MACHINARY, a company established in Bulgaria, wamsolidated for the first time. VAMBA HOLDINGS
LTD has a 100% holding in this company, with thetipgpation cost of €3,600 thousand. Upon acquisitiLand

& Buildings of €12,514 thousand, and deferred litibs of €1,251 thousand were recognised, dudegtoperty
including buildings and installations held by BURGACHINARY in Bourgas, Bulgaria.

» ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY

The company was consolidated using the full metfathwing acquisition of 99.8% by the parent, AKRGBA,
for the price of €499 thousand.

» NEMO MARITIME COMPANY

The company was consolidated using the full codatibn method, following acquisition of 99.8% b tharent,
AKTOR SA, for the price of €499 thousand. Upon asifjion, PPE involving transportation equipment,ieth
corresponds to the vessels owned by the compar§l,005 thousand, and deferred liabilities of €#tdusand
were recognised.

Apart from the above company, the financial stateihdor the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.201@, ribt
include the following subsidiaries:

> BIOSAR ENERGY SA (I consolidation in the interim summary financial eepof 30.06.2011)
> ILIAKI ADERES SA (1% consolidation in the interim summary financial seof 30.06.2011)

While consolidated in the interim summary finanai@porting as of 30.06.2011, the companies DIMITRA
and HELLENIC LIGNITES SA were not consolidated lirese consolidated financial statements, as theanbsg
absorption by HELLENIC QUARRIES SA was completedatcordance with the provisions of articles 6&(&)
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69-77 of Codified Law 2190/1920, as in force, thBransformation Balance Sheet date for each absorbed
company being 31.3.2011. The aforementioned tramsftion was completed pursuant to decision RefENd-
25845/15.12.2011 of the Deputy Head of Region, ot Athens Division, which approved the merged te
relevant registration announcements were madeeirCtimpanies Register with regard to the merged aoimp
(Ref.No. EM-25845/15.12.2011(bis), EM-25846/15.022 and EM-25847/15.12.2011 for HELLENIC
QARRIES SA, DIMITRA SA and HELLENIC LIGNITES SA, spectively).

In addition to the aforementioned companies, tHewong companies had been consolidated in thenfia
statements of 31.12.2010 using the full consolatnethod, but are not consolidated in the statésrfen the
current year:

» LATOMIA STILIDAS SA, due to its absorption by HELLNMIC QUARRIES SA in Q1 2011
» LATOMIKI IMATHIAS SA, due to its absorption by HELENIC QUARRIES SA in Q1 2011.

7.b The companies of the Group consolidated undeedjuéty method are the following:

PARENT %

REGISTER UNAUDITE
SIN COMPANY ED OFFICE DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL D YEARS
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE 23.38% 23.38% 2010-2011
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE 40.00% 40.00% 1932011
3 CHELIDONA SA GREECE 50.00% 50.00% 1998-2011
4 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD CYPRUS 50.00% 50.00%

The following company was first included in thensolidated financial statements as of 31.12.20afhbd not
been included on 31.12.2010m as it was establish2d11:

» AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD

AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD is established in Cyprus. AKTORONTRACTORS LTD has a 50% holding in this
company, with the participation cost amounting 26& thousand.

EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO LTD is no longer consolied in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method, although having been teduin last year’s consolidated financial statesieas it was
dissolved in Q3 2011, without any significant effen the Group.

EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) and HELLAS GOLD SA X are no longer consolidated as associates
using the equity method as, on 1 October 2011, ARTGDNSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the parent, AKTOR SA) entergd an agreement for the sale of 13,000,000 sldre&U

to Qatar Holding, i.e. 7.07% of its share capifat, the total amount of CAD 130 million (€93.9 niilh). The
holding of AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD irEGU represented 12.2% of its share capital.

EGU andEX were classified in Q4 as Financial assets availdtt sale (note 11). The profit for the Group
amounted to €261,250 thousand (note 24), whichoalilated by taking into account the profit frame sale of

a holding in an associate, the reclassificatiorustdjent of reserves that had been formed, as wetha
measurement of the remaining holding in EGU (12.2%4 the holding iEX (5%) at fair value. The results of
the above companies prior to the above transadgtmrduring the 9-month period of 2011, are ineldidh the row
“Profit/(loss) from associates" in profit and loss.

The result in financial statement line Profit/ 44 from associates presented in the Income Statem
corresponding to losses for 2011 to the amount4o#ZL thousand, mainly relates to losses of EURCQYEA
GOLDFIELDS SA for the first 9-month period. The pestive amount for 2010 (losses of €7,002 thousand)
mainly relates to EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS SA.
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7.c The companies and joint ventures consolidated rutttke proportional consolidation are presentedhia t
following tables:

PARENT %
REGISTER
ED UNAUDITED
SIN COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS
1 STRAKTOR SA GREECE 50% 50.00% 2010-2011

Here follows a detailed table with the joint vemtsiconsolidated using the proportional method.

In this table, in the columns under "First time €aolidation"”, 1 indicates those Joint Ventures ctidated for the
first time during the current period as newly elshied, while they had not been included in thepeetive period
last year, i.e. 31.12.2010 (indicator RPY).

0,
REGIST PA/Fom FIRST TIME
ERED | CIPATI | UNAUDITED | CONSOLIDATI
SIN | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE ON YEARS ON
(10 | (IPP/IRPY
) )
1 | JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 75 2010-2011| 0 0
2 | JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECH| 60 2010-2011] 0O 0
3 | JIVAKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
4 | JIV AKTOR SA - TODINI CONSTRUZIONI GENERALI S.P.A GREECE 45 2010-2011 0 0
5 | JVTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010-2011 0 0
6 | JIVAKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECH| 99.9 2010-201 | © 0
“J)V AKTOR SA — TERNA SA- BIOTER SA” - TERNA SA- EDTER
7 | SA-AKTOR SA GREECE |  33.33 2010-2011 0 0
8 | JIV AKTOR SA— PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX SA GRECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
9 | JIVAKTOR SA-J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE | 6578 2010-2011 0 0
JV AKTOR SA — MICHANIKI SA ~MOCHLOS SA —ALTE SA -
10 | AEGEK GREECE |  45.42 2010-2011 0 0
11 | JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE|  49.82| 2010-2011 0 0
12 | JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECH 495 020-2011 0 0
13 | JIV AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE | 6577 2010-2011 0 0
JN ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF ELEFSINA-STAVROS-
14 | SPATA ROAD & W.IMITOS RINGROAD GREECE|  59.27 2010-2D 0 0
15 | JIV ATTIKAT SA— AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2010-2011 0 0
16 | JV_TOMI SA — AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM) GREECE 100 |  2010-2011 0 0
17 | JIVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010-2011 0 0
18 | JIV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 50 | 2010-2011 0 0
19 | JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70 2010-201 | 0 0
JNV AKTOR SA — SIEMENS SA - VINCI CONSTRUCTIONS
20 | GRANDS PROJETS GREECE 70 2010-2011 0 0
21 | JIV AKTOR SA —~AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE] 30 2010-2011 0 0
22 | JIV TERNA SA—-MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECH 35 0862011 0 0
23 | JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2010-2011 0 0
24 | JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECH  mm 2010-2011 0 0
25 | JIV_J&P-AVAX -TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE|  33.33| 2010-2011 0 0
26 | JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
27 | JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
28 | JIV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE| 338 2010-2011 0 0
29 | JIV AKTOR SA —PANTECHNIKI (PLATANOS) GREECE] 60 020-2011 0 0
30 | JIV AKTOR ~TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51 2010-2011 0 0
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31 | J/V AKTOR SA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-ATTIKATSA GREECE 59.27 2010-2011 0 0
32 | JVTEO SA -AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010-2011 0 0
33 | J/V AKTOR SA -TERNA SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
34 | JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2007-2011 0 0
35 | J/V AKTOR SA - STRABAG AG N1 GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
36 | J/V KASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE 53.35  2010-2011 0 0
37 | JIV (CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE 817 20011

JIV AKTOR SA -AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA(CONSTR. OF OA
38 | HANGAR) EXECUTOR GREECE 52 202011
39 | J/V ANAPLAS| ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI) EXECUTOR GREECE 100 2010-2011

JNV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON
40 | MUSIC HALL PHASE B — E/M) GREECE 30 2010-2011

JNV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON
41 | MUSIC HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) GREECE 30 2010-2011
42 | JIV AKTOR SA — ALTE SA GREECE 50 2010-2011

JINV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR SA-
43 | KONSTANTINIDIS SA — TECHNERG SA.- TSAMPRAS SA GREEC 25 2007-2011
44 | JIV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 66.67|  2010-2011
45 | JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE 74 | 2010-2011
46 | JV GEFYRA GREECE | 20.32 2008-2011
47 | JV AEGEK - BIOTER SA — AKTOR SA — EKTER SA GREE 40 2009-2011
48 | JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE i} 2010-2011
49 | JIV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50 2010-2011
50 | J/V AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREEE | 33.33 2007-2011
51 | J/V AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREEE | 66.66 2008-2011

JIV AKTOR SA -TOMI-ALTE-EMPEDOS (OLYMPIC VILLAGE
52 | LANDSCAPING) GREECE |  45.33 2010-2011

JIV AKTOR SA -SOCIETE FRANCAISE EQUIPEMENT
53 | HOSPITALIER SA GREECE 65 2010-2011

JN THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA &TE -

PASSAVANT MASCHINENTECHNIK GmbH - GIOVANNI
54 | PUTIGNANO & FIGLI St GREECE | 53.33 2008-2011
55 | J/V TOMI SA - AKTOR SA (LAMIA HOSPITAL) GREECE| 100 2010-2011
56 | J/V AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 49 01D-2011
57 | J/V AKTOR SA —~ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE| %68 2010-2011
58 | J/V EKTER SA.— AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2010-2011

JIV AKTOR SA — DOMOTECHNIKI SA — THEMELIODOMI SA —
59 | TERNA SA—ETETH SA GREECE 25 2010-2011
60 | J/V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2006-2011
61 | J/V AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70 2010-201
62 | J/V AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA GREECE 50 2008-2011
63 | J/V AKTOR SA -ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50 2010-2011
64 | J/VJ.&P.-AVAX SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50 201021
65 | J/V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2007-2011
66 | JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50 -
67 | JVQATAR QATAR 40 -

BULGAR
68 | JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SA IA 100 2010-2011
BULGAR

69 | CONSORTIUM BIOSAR ENERGY - AKTOR IA 100 2010-2011

JIV TOMI SA — HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA LANDFILL - SETION
70 [ GREECE | 59.61 2010-2011
71 | J/V TOMI — MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65 202011
72 | JV TOMI SA — ELTER SA GREECE 50 2009-2011
73 | J/V TOMI SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 100 2010-2011
74 | JIV KASTOR SA — TOMI SA GREECE 100 2010-2011
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75 JIV KASTOR SA-ELTER SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
76 JIV KASTOR SA —-ERTEKA SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
77 J/V VISTONIA SA — ERGO SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
78 J/V TOMI SA — TECHNOGNOSIA IPIROU GREECH 90 262011 0 0
79 JIV ERGO SA — TOMI SA GREECE 15 2010-2011 0 0
80 J/V TOMI SA — ARSI SA GREECE 67 2010-2011 0 0
81 J/V TOMI SA — CHOROTECHNIKI SA GREECEH 50 2010320 0 0
82 J/V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (MYKONOS PORT) GREECH 50 2010-2011 0 0
83 J/V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECEH 50 1292011 0 0
84 J/V TOMI SA —HELECTOR SA GREECE 78.25 2007-2011 0 0
85 J/V KASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECH 70 2010-2011 0 0
86 J/V AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-BOSKALIS(THERMAIKI ODOS) GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
87 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 55 2010-2011 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA — Foundation tfie
88 | Hellenic World — PHASE A GREECE 56 2010-2011 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA- Foundation ohe

89 | Hellenic World — PHASE B GREECE 56 2010-2011 0 0
90 JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA GREECE 50 2009-2011 0 0
91 JIV AKTOR —INTRAKAT - J & P AVAX GREECE 71.67 20-2011 0 0
92 J/V HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK-ATHENA GREECE 19.3 2010-2011 0 0
93 JIV AKTOR — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70 2007-2011 0 0
94 JIV VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-ATHENA GREECE 17 2009-2011 0 0
95 JIV AKTOR SA-STRABAG SA MARKETS GREECE| 50 201021 0 0
96 J/V AKTOR SA — XANTHAKIS SA GREECE 55 2010-2011| 1 RPY
97 J/V KASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70 2010-2011 0 0
98 JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 65 2010-2011 0 0
99 J./V AKTOR SA -PANTRAK GREECE 80 2010-2011 0 0
100 | J./V AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 70 2009-2011 0 0
101 | J./V AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.33 2010-2011 0 0
102 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 50 2008-2011 0 0
103 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437) GREECE 50 2007-2011 0 0
104 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIAA438) GREECE 50 2008-2011 0 0
105 | J./V ELTER SA -KASTOR SA GREECE 15 2010-2011 0 0
106 | J./V TERNA - AKTOR GREECE 50 2009-2011 0 0
107 | J./V AKTOR - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33 2009-2011 0 0
108 | J./V AKTOR - POLYECO GREECE 52 2010-2011 0 0
109 | J./V AKTOR - MOCHLOS GREECE 70 2010-2011 0 0
110 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT ] GREECE 50 2008-2011 0 0
111 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT 2 GREECE 50 2008-2011 0 0
112 | J./V AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
113 | J./V EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35 2009-2011 0 0
114 | J./V AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
115 | J./V“J./V TOMI — HELECTOR” — KONSTANTINIDIS GRECE 54.78 2008-2011 0 0
116 | J/V TOMI SA — AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT GREECE 100 2010-2011 0 0
117 | J./V AKTOR — TOXOTIS “ANTHOUPOLI METRO" GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
118 | J/V AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA —GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 48 2009-2011 0 0
119 | J/V AKTOR SA — IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75 2010-PD 0 0
120 | J./V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
121 | J/V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50 2009-2011 0 0
122 | J/V AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0
123 | J/V AKTOR SA-ELTER SA GREECE 70 2009-2011 0 0
124 | J/V TOMI SA — AKTOR FM GREECE 100 2010-2011 0 0
125 | J/V ERGOTEM —KASTOR- ETETH GREECH 15 2009-2011 O 0
126 | J/V LMN SA — KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 20 2012011 0 0
127 | J/V CONSTRUTEC SA —-KASTOR SA GREECE 30 200920 0 0
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JIV AKTOR SA —|. PAPAILIOPOULOS SA - DEGREMONT SA-

128 | DEGREMONT SPA GREECE 30 2010-2011 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - NGA NETWORK

129 | DEVELOPMENT GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0

130 | J/V TOMI SA — AP. MARAGAKIS GREEN WORKS SA GREECE 65 2011 1 0

131 | J/V TOMI SA — ETHRA CONSTRUCTION SA GREECE 50 01P-2011 0 0

JIV TOMI SA — MEXIS L-TATSIS K. PARTNERSHIP (J/V TR SA-
132 | TOPIODOMI PARTNERSHIP) GREECE 50 2010-2011 0 0

While consolidated in the financial statements o previous year, i.e. on 31.12.10, the company mas
consolidated in these financial statements, sihedax settlement of “J/V TODINI COSTRUZIONI GENERA
S.p AKTOR SA” was completed.

7.d Row ‘Investments in Joint Ventures’ of the consated Statement of Financial Position shows the
participation cost in other non important Joint Weas, standing at €1,209 thousand on 31.12.20d1a88920
thousand on 31.12.2010. The Group share in theltsesf the aforementioned Joint Ventures appears in
Profit/(Loss) from Joint Ventures in the Incomet8taent, and amounted to loss of €153 thousanddt 2nd to
loss of €593 thousand for 2010.

8 Investments in subsidiaries

The change to the book value of the parent comganyestments to consolidated undertakings waslks\s:

Amounts in ,000 EUR
COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
At beginning of year 104,922 104,045
Additions new 6,517
Additions- increase in participation cost - 937
Absorption of Pantechniki 70
Disposal of subsidiary - (60)
At year end 111,509 104,922
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9 Investments in associates

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
At beginnig of year 69,469 71,132 1,397 1,417
Impairment due to disposal of subsidiary - (5) - -
Additions new 250 - - -
(Sales) (23,340) (16) - (21)
Share in profit/ loss (after taxes) (4,421) (7,002) - -
Other changes in equity 1,507 5,361 - -
Transfer to available for sale Assets and
Subsidiaries (42,594) - - -
At year end 872 69,469 1,397 1,397
Summary financial information on associates forZoi1:
Amounts in ,000 EUR
PARTICIPA
TION
PROFIT/ | PERCENTA
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) GE (%)
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,343 9,25 L (32) 23.38
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 272 11 - (5) 40.00
3 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - - 50.00
4 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,118 619 - 1) 50.00
Summary financial information on associates forZM0:
Amounts in ,000 EUR
PARTICIPA
TION
PROFIT/ | PERCENTA
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) GE (%)
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,548 9,42 15 (673) 23.38
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 275 9 - (127) 40.00
3 HELLAS GOLD SA 119,770 71,349 37,321 (5,671) 5.00
4 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - 1) 50.00
EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO
5 LTD 395 - - 4 50.00
6 EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD 455,691 105,987 37,668(32,827) 19.30
PANTECHNIKI SA-D.
7 KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA OE 2,275 1,339 2,594  (210) 30.00
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10 Joint Ventures & Companies consolidated followinghe proportional method

The following amounts represent the Group’s sham@ssets and liabilities in joint ventures and canips which
were consolidated following the proportional comdation method and which are included in the Stetenof
Financial Position, together with the share of naes and expenses included in the Group’s Income@ent
for fiscal years 2011 and 2010:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Receivables
Non-current assets 23,962 34,212
Current assets 392,132 550,378
416,094 584,590
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 4,347 13,006
Current liabilities 407,776 556,634
412,122 569,640
Equity 3,972 14,950
Income 314,278 671,791
Expenses (357,504) (645,603)
Profit / (loss) (after tax) (43,225) 26,188

11 Available for sale financial assets

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUPFIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

At beginning of year 396 436 372 409
Disposal of subsidiary - 4) - -
Additions new 3 - - -
(Sales) - (5) - (5)
Transfer from Associates 42,514 - - -
Adjustment at fair value through profit and loss
increase /(decrease) 180,492 - - -
Adjustment at fair value through equity increase
/(decrease) 56,680 (32) (321) (32)
At year end 280,085 396 51 372
Non-current assets 280,085 396 51 372

280,085 396 51 372
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AKTOR SA

Available for sale finanacial assets include tH&faing:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Listed securities:

Shares — Greece (in EUR)
Shares — Greece (in CAD)
Non-listed securities:
Shares —Greece

The increase seen in rows “Transfer from Associat#&gljustment at fair value through profit and &fsand
“Adjustment at fair value through equity” is due ttee inclusion in Financial assets available fde & the
companies EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD and HELLAS GOLB.S

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemirby discounting estimated future cash flows, thase the

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
51 372 51 372

280,007 - -

27 24 - -

280,085 396 51 372

market rate, and the required return on investmafggmilar risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reporiilage is the value at which financial assets abksl#or sale

are shown.

12 Inventory

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Raw materials
Finished products
Semi-finished products
Production in progress

Prepayment for inventories purchase

Other
Total

Less: Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or

damaged inventory:
Raw materials
Finished products

Net realisable value

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
8,200 15,627 370 543
12,093 6,334 - -
539 336 - -
463 375 - -
2,638 39 - -
3,582 7,371 28 1
27,516 30,082 398 544
2,068 6 5 6
228 - - -
2,296 6 5 6
25,220 30,076 393 539
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13 Receivables

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

Trade receivables (except for withheld guarantees)

Withheld guarantees (e.g. good performance)
Trade receivables - Total

Trade receivables — Related parties

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Trade Receivables - Net

Prepayments
Amounts due from customers for construction
contracts

Income tax prepayment
Receivables from JVs

Loans to related parties
Prepayments for operating leases
Other receivables

Other receivables -Related parties

Less: Other receivable impairment provisions

Total

Non-current assets
Current assets

The account “Other Receivables” is analysed as\idl

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Sundry debtors

Greek State (taxes deducted & prepaid) & Social
security

Income for the fiscal year receivable
Accrued expenses

Prepayments to suppliers/creditors
Cheques (postdated) receivable

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
239,378 228,217 70,207 58,019
60,077 71,184 7,829 6,438
299,455 299,401 78,036 64,457
45,953 94,798 26,419 19,318
(284 (984) (3,804) (265)
315,999 393,214 100,651 83,511
1,584 1,459 163 92
138,811 254,830 66,304 118,286
479 2,024 - -
133,350 92,669 286,537 247,351
- - 189 38
169 24 101 24
162,975 151,515 50,347 44,488
10,537 4,574 ,8468 52,045
(3)426 - (2,314) -
760,477 900,310 570,824 545,834
10,435 15,852 375 1,466
750,043 884,457 570,449 544,368
760,477 900,310 570,824 545,834
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
62,840 67,109 15,632 18,364
37,969 26,481 15,127 7,582
7,421 4,201 2,876 3,190
7,990 10,114 3,215 4,305
34,753 34,857 8,224 7,630
12,002 8,753 5,274 3,417
162,975 151,515 50,347 44,488

Trade and Other receivables measured at amortiastlusing the effective interest rate method arnsotm
€546.7 million for 2011 and €580.6 million for 2010
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The movement on provision for impairment of tradeeaivables is shown in the following table:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Balance at 1 January 2010
Provision for impairment of receivables
Write-off of receivables during the period

Unused amount reversed

Foreign exchange differences

Disposal of subsidiary

Balance at 31 December 2010
Provisions for impairment/ absorption
Write-off of receivables during the period
Foreign exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2011

GROUP COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES
709 265
403 -
4 -
(96) -
(6) -
(23) -
984 265
28,402 3,542
(85) -
107 @)
29,409 3,804

The movement on the provision for impairment ofestfeceivables is shown in the following table:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Balance at 1 January 2011
Provision for impairment of receivables
Balance at 31 December 2011

GROUP COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES

3,426 2,314
3,426 2,314

The increase in the provisions for impairment oide and other receivables is mainly due to theoreakaid

down in note 24.

The ageing analysis for Trade balances as of 3tmber 2011 is as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Not overdue and not impaired
Overdue:

3 -6 months

6 months to 1 year

1-2 years

2 -3 years

Over 3 years

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

170,370 218,475 53,660 45,359

37,902 39,829 8,806 4,201

49,716 56,806 11,524 9,712
41,042 40,518 7,975 4,653

17,673 16,788 3,386 6,176
28,706 21,782 19,101 13,672
345,407 394,198 104,455 83,775

(284 (984) (3,804) (265)
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Trade receivables - Net 315,999 393,214 100,650 83,510
Receivables are analysed in the following currencie
Amounts in ,000 EUR
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
EURO 530,016 560,526 439,902 447,951
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 62,703 63,751 73,918 51,559
US DOLLAR ($) 6,795 - 6,795 -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 11,692 8,128 11,568 5,993
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 48,175 154,035 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 89,443 100,691 29,392 28,494
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 7,725 13,178 5,522 11,835
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 1,582 - 1,582 -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 2,144 1 2,022 1
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 123 - 123 -
SUDANESE POUND (SDG) 79 - - -
760,477 900,310 570,824 545,834
Carrying amount of non-current receivables appnates their fair value.
14 Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts in ,000 EUR
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Cash in hand 1,689 2,969 286 13
Sight deposits 109,426 172,501 28,035 65,109
Time deposits 15,137 5,858 9,743 3,479
Total 126,251 181,328 38,064 68,601

Time deposits for the current year amounting to, €35 thousand at group level, mainly arise fromphrent
company, AKTOR SA, and its joint ventures, with B8 thousand and €5,164 thousand, respectively0(201

€3,479 thousand and €1,971 respectively).

The following table shows the rates of depositsqoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P) a3112.2011.
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Percentage of sight and time deposits

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

Financial Institution Rating (S&P)

AA 0.0% 3.3%
A 3.8% 0.0%
AA 4.1% 0.0%
A- 0.1% 0.4%
BBB+ 0.1% 0.8%
BB+ 0.0% 33.0%
BB 0.0% 43.3%
CCC 74.6% 0.0%
NR 17.2% 19.2%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

Approximately 90% of the balances of sight andetideposits of the Group on 31.12.2011, is depositdive
banks into the geographical areas where the Grpepates . The Group considers that they involvg ligrited
credit risk.

The increased cooperation with lower rated credititutions seen is due to the downgrade of Gregkd credit
ratings, as a result of the debt crisis in Gre#tcghould be noted out that the Greek banks gewnost of the
total credit facilities (letters of guarantee, Ieantc.) granted to the Group. It is estimated thatPSI, combined
with the anticipated gradual improvement of sentitmewards the Greek economy and the recapitadisatf
Greek banks (also through Greece's new Financigp&u Programme) will contribute to the gradual
improvement of credit ratings for Greek banks. Tideposit rates are determined following negotiatiarith
selected banking institutions, based on Euribarbdnk rates for a period equal to that of thecsetepositioning
(e.g. weekly, monthly, etc).

Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevialipcurrencies:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

EURO 96,432 170,324 24,360 63,862
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 170 83 61 17
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD) 200 109 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 14,846 192 4,728 11
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 958 3,130 701 2,936
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 3,346 4,980 6 -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 3,367 1,465 1,409 815
SAUDI ARABIAN RIYAL (SAR) 3 - 3
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 5,216 1,044 5,087 959
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 1,659 - 1,659 -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 33 1 33 1
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 17 - 17 -
SUDANESE POUND (SDG) 4 - - -

126,251 181,328 38,064 68,601
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15 Share Capital & Premium Reserve

All amounts in EUR, save the number of shares
GROUP FIGURES

Number of Shares Share capital Share premium Total
1-Jan-10 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
31-Dec-10 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
1-Jan-11 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
Issue of new shares from
absorption of Pantechniki 5,282,300 15,847 - 15,847
31-Dec-11 46,582,300 139,747 72,789 212,536

The nominal value of the parent company’s shar€8ieach.

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdersided to increase the share capital of the pa@mpany
AKTOR SA by €15,847 thousand in total, which wallyfaovered by the absorbed company’s (PANTECHNIKI
SA) share capital which was contributed as a resllthe company’s split, as shown in the transfiion
Balance Sheet of PANTECHNIKI SA on 31 March 2011ithwhe issue of five million two hundred eightydw
thousand and three hundred (5,282,300) new, commagistered voting shares, with the nominal valtithcee
Euro each.
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16 Other reserves
All amounts in ,000 EUR.

GROUP FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Available FX Cash Flow

Statutory Special Untaxed for sale differences hedging

reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves Total
1-Jan-10 20,252 44,637 35,939 (106) (2,124) 4,051 02,849
Foreign exchange differences - - - - 3,871 - 3,871
Transfer from retained earnings 203 15,364 - - - - 15,567
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale / Cash
flow hedge - - - (32) - 2,306 2,274
31-Dec-10 20,455 60,001 35,939 (138) 1,747 6,357 4,36D
1-Jan-11 20,455 60,001 35,939 (138) 1,747 6,357 3601
Foreign exchange differences - - - - (2,673) - 13)6
Absorption of Pantechniki - - - - 2,064 - 2,064
Transfer from retained earnings 28 - 554 - - - 582
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale / Cash
flow hedge - - - 56,680 - 2,443 59,123
Reclassification adjustment of
Foreign exchange differences /
Cash flow hedge reserves - - - - (1,278) (8,784) 0,082)
Reclassification 16 (16) -
31-Dec-11 20,483 60,001 36,492 56,542 (124) - 8,3

The decrease of €6,357 thousand disclosed in 201he Cash flow hedging reserve is due to the @sou

associates. Group associates participate with €2thdusand in the decrease

presented in the egehan

difference reserves, of €1,871 thousand. In 2046, Group associates contributed by 2,306 thousarithet
increase in Cash flow hedging reserves, and catéibby €3,050 thousand to the increase of €3,83dsand in
Foreign exchange difference reserves.

The reserve reclassification adjustment pertainsraserves that had been formed when EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) was consolidated using the iggumethod. Moreover, the amount of €56,680
thousand by which the Assets available for salerveswas increased was mainly due to a changeifathvalue

of EGU and HELLAS GOLD SA in the period from thetelaf classification as Financial assets availdbie

sale and up to 31.12.2011.
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COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Foreign
Available Exchange

Statutory Special Untaxed for sale Difference

reserves reserves reserves reserves Reserves Total
1-Jan-10 17,845 43,300 31,976 (106) 387 93,402
Foreign currency translation - - - - (966) (966)
Transfer from retained earnings - 15,364 - - - 68,3
Adjustments in fair value and
cash flow hedges - - - (32) - (32)
31-Dec-10 17,845 58,664 31,976 (138) (579) 107,768
1-Jan-11 17,845 58,664 31,976 (138) (579) 107,768
Foreign currency translation - - - - (38) (38)
Absorption of Pantechniki - - - - 2,064 2,064
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale - - - (321) - (321)
31-Dec-11 17,845 58,664 31,976 (459) 1,447 109,473

(a) Statutory reserve

Articles 44 and 45 of Codified Law 2190/1920 pdms how the statutory reserve is formed and usetkast
5% of each year’s realized net profit must bénléld to form a statutory reserve, until the acclamed statutory
reserve amount equals at least 1/3 of the shargatappon decision of the Ordinary General Meetiog
Shareholders, the statutory reserve may not befoseshy other purpose but to cover losses.

(b) Special reserves

Reserves of this category have been formed upoiside of the Ordinary General Meeting in past gedo not
have any specific designation and may thereforadeel for any purpose, upon decision of the Orditeperal
Meeting.

(c) Untaxed reserves

These reserves may be capitalised and distriutexhsidering the applicable limitations) upon demi of the
Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders.

In case distribution is decided, the company valé to pay the relevant taxes.
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17 Borrowings

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Non-curent borrowings
Bank borrowings 737 13,690 - -
Financial leases 116 275 - -
Bond loans 50,728 30,000 41,728 30,000
From related parties 5,000 - - -
Total non-current borrowings 56,582 43,965 41,728 30,000
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts 4,549 7,467 - -
Bank borrowings 119,626 176,626 55,801 43,710
Bond loans 67,750 62,300 66,750 51,300
Financial leases 118 2,850 - -
From related parties 1,101 1,018 - 537
Total current borrowings 193,145 250,262 122,551 95,547
Total borrowings 249,726 294,227 164,280 125,547

The change disclosed in the Bond Loan row undekBmrrowings is mainly attributed to the parenKTROR
SA, and the subsidiary HELLENIC QUARRIES SA.

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the datespricing are set out in the following table:

GROUP FIGURES

31-Dec-10
Total borrowings

31-Dec-11
Total borrowings

FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
INTEREST up to 6 6-12
RATE months months >12 months Total
2,519 258,476 31,319 1,913 294,227
2,519 258,476 31,319 1,913 294,227
5,000 240,486 4,240 - 249,726
5,000 240,486 4,240 - 249,726
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COMPANY FIGURES

FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
INTEREST upto 6 6-12
RATE months months >12 months Total
31-Dec-10
Total borrowings - 125,547 - - 125,547
- 125,547 - - 125,547
31-Dec-11
Total borrowings - 164,280 - - 164,280
- 164,280 - - 164,280

The maturities of non current borrowings are dgves:

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Between 1 and 2 years 43,209 13,112 41,728 -
Between 2 and 5 years 13,373 30,812 - 30,000
Over 5 years - 41 - -
56,582 43,965 41,728 30,000

Borrowings are analysed in the following currencies

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

EURO 197,747 193,486 154,537 110,331
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 2,542 147 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 9,743 14,922 9,743 14,679
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 31,135 57,661 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 8,559 27,437 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) - 575 - 537

249,726 294,227 164,280 125,547

Group borrowings are mainly linked to floating m{&uribor plus spread).

In addition, on 31.12.2011, AKTOR had issued compgunarantees for €217.3 million (31.12.2010: €326.6
million) in favour of companies and joint venturieswhich it participates, mainly to secure bankdiréines or
credit from suppliers.

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by disating estimated future cash flows, using discaates which
represent the current conditions in the bankingketar
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The fair value of current borrowings approximatksirt currying amount as the impact of the discoustnot

significant.

Financelease commitments, , are analyzed as fellow

GROUP FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Financelease commitments — minimum
lease payments
No later than 1 year 127 2,935
1-5 years 121 288
Total 248 3,224
Less: Future financial charges of finance
leases (14) (99)
Present value of finance lease
commitments 234 3,125

The present value of finance lease commitmentsasy/aed below:

GROUP FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
No later than 1 year 118 2,850
1-5 years 116 275
Total 234 3,125

The parent company has no finance lease liabilities

18 Trade and other payables

The Company'’s liabilities from trade activities diree of interest.

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Trade payables
Liabilities to JVs
Accrued expenses

Social security and other taxes
Amounts due to customers for construction
contracts

Other payables
Total liabilities — Related parties
Total

Non-current
Current

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
188,115 176,461 62,628 76,273
49,106 32,146 158,707 82,235
16,362 15,203 212 133
22,210 35,482 32,9 20,414
36,107 42,407 15,446 19,822
241,737 240,517 78,286 68,811
41,143 57,353 49,863 35,662
594,780 599,570 378,080 303,349
8,012 2,430 5,494 11
586,768 597,140 372,586 303,337
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Total

“Other Liabilities” is analysed as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Sundry creditors
Advances from customers
Liabilities to subcontractors

Beneficiaries of fees for services provided and
Employee fees payable

594,780 599,570 378,080 303,349
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
39,527 15,012 3,687 4,050
119,604 137,174 37,222 27,857
66,987 70,697 31,165 29,882
15,618 17,634 6,211 7,021

241,737 240,517 78,286 68,811

Trade and the payables are analysed in the folipwurrencies:

Amounts in EUR thousand

EURO
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD)

BAHREIN DINAR (BHD)

US DOLLAR ($)

ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON)

BRITISH POUND (£)

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED)
QATAR RIYAL (QAR)

SAUDI ARABIAN RIYAL (SAR)
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)

ALBANIAN LEK (ALL)

SERBIAN DINAR (RSD)

RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB)

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
422,704 398,937 306,399 261,429
52,204 39,672 20,586 7,562
119 - - -
1,124 372 - -
7,390 4,473 4,818 2,625
10 58 - -
44,369 106,850 - -
45,649 37,827 29,266 24,308
104 - - -
15,299 11,380 11,204 7,425
1,322 - 1,322 -
4,485 - 4,484 -
1 - 1 -
594,780 599,570 378,081 303,349

Trade and Other payables measured at amortizeédusivg the effective interest rate method amoar£416.9

million for 2011 (2010: €384.5 million).

The carrying amount of non-current liabilitiespapximates their fair value.
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19 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are compedsateen there is an applicable legal right to conspém the
current tax assets against the current tax ltasliand when the deferred income taxes involvestime tax

authority. The offset amounts for the Group aeefthlowing:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months 6,975 20,012
6,975 20,012
Deferred tax assets:
Recoverable after 12 months 2,515 75
2,515 75
4,461 19,936
Total change in deferred income tax is presentéabe
Amounts in ,000 EUR
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Opening balance 19,936 15,911
Income statement debit/ (credit) (14,880) 4,011
Absorption of Pantechniki (2,116) -
Acquisition/ disposal of subsidiary 1,537 39
Foreign currency translation a7) (24)
4,461 19,936

Closing balance

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitiesndutie year, without taking into account offsettmfgbalances

with the same tax authority, are the following:
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Accelerated

tax Construction Assets under
e A Other Total
depreciatio contracts  finance lease
n
1-Jan-10 4,641 46,132 764 - 51,537
Income statement debit/(credit) 653 (2,306) (251) - (1,904)
Disposal of subsidiary - - (316) - (316)
Foreign currency translation (24) - - - (24)
31-Dec-10 5,271 43,826 197 - 49,294
1-Jan-11 5,271 43,826 197 - 49,294
Income statement debit/(credit) (262) (18,559) (81) - (18,902)
Acquisition c_)f_sub3|d|ary/ absorption 1,308 159 ) 5 1.468
of Pantechniki
Foreign currency translation a7) - - - a7)
31-Dec-11 6,300 25,426 116 2 31,844
Deferred tax assets:
Amounts in ,000 EUR
Accelerated
tax Construction  Finance lease
depreciatio contracts liabilities Other Total
n
1-Jan-10 215 33,585 646 1,181 35,626
Income statement debit/(credit) (42) (5,814) (143) 85 (5,914)
Disposal of subsidiary 2) - (353) - (355)
31-Dec-10 171 27,771 151 1,265 29,357
1-Jan-11 171 27,771 151 1,265 29,357
Income statement debit/(credit) (54) (3,845) (205) (16) (4,021)
Acquisition of subsidiary/ absorption
of Pantechniki 1 1,941 2 103 2,047
31-Dec-11 117 25,867 a7 1,352 27,383
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The offset amounts for the Company are the follgwin

COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in EUR thousand

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months - 7,841
- 7,841
Deferred tax assets:
Recoverable after 12 months 936 -
936 -
Total change in deferred income tax is presentémibe
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Opening balance 7,841 2,674
Income statement debit/ (credit) (6,661) 5,167
Absorption of Pantechniki (2,116) -
Closing balance (936) 7,841

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitiesnduttie year, without taking into account offsettmfgbalances
with the same tax authority, are the following:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Accelerated Construction

tax Total
depreciation contracts
1-Jan-10 1,369 26,329 27,698
Income statement debit/(credit) 133 435 568
31-Dec-10 1,502 26,764 28,266
1-Jan-11 1,502 26,764 28,266
Income statement debit/(credit) 54 (11,586) (11,532)
Absorption of Pantechniki (144) 6 (138)
31-Dec-11 1,412 15,184 16,595
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Deferred tax assets:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan-10
Income statement debit/(credit)

31-Dec-10

1-Jan-11
Income statement debit/(credit)

Absorption of Pantechniki
31-Dec-11

20 Retirement benefit obligations

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Accelerated

tax C(():r;ttrrl;((::ttlsn Other Total
depreciation

119 23,959 946 25,024

(47) (4,627) 76 (4,598)

72 19,332 1,021 20,425

72 19,332 1,021 20,425

(39) (4,640) (192) (4,872)

- 1,925 52 1,977

32 16,617 882 17,531

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinBRosition

are the following:

Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Positionfor:

Retirement benefits

Total

The amounts recognised in the Income Statemernhare

following:

Income statement charge for:
Retirement benefits

Total

GROUPFIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
5,194 6,060 4,285 5,107
5,194 6,060 4,285 5,107

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
5,069 4,242 4,198 3,603
5,069 4,242 4,198 3,603

The amounts disclosed in the Statement of FinaRaaition are as follows:

Present value of non-financed liabilities
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(losses)

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11  31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
5,726 764, 4,735 6,606
(532) (704 (451) (1,499)
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Liability in the Statement of Financial Position 5,194 6,060 4,285 5,107
The amounts recognized in the Income Statemergsafallows:
GRPOUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11  31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Current service cost 761 814 614 642
Interest cost 334 422 284 364
Depreciation of unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) 120 86 108 86
Past service cost (26) 257 (33) 257
Curtailments 3,879 2,662 3,225 2,255
Total included in staff costs 5,069 4,242 4,198 3,603

The movement in liability as disclosed in the Staat of Financial Position is as follows:

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11  31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Opening balance 6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728
Absorption of Pantechniki 262 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary 51 - 262 -
Indemnities paid (6,248) (3,868) (5,282) (3,224)
Total expense charged in the income statement 95,06 4,242 4,198 3,603
Closing balance 5,194 6,060 4,285 5,107

Theprincipal actuarial assumptions used for acdngrgurposes are:

Discount rate
Future salary increases

21 Government Grants

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-11  31-Dec-10

4.80% 4.30%
4.00% 4.00%

Note 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
At beginning of year 912 205
Additions 559 722
Transfer to Income Statement: Other operating
income/expenses 24 (22) (14)
At year end 1,450 912
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22 Provisions

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan-10
Additional provisions for fiscal year

Unused amounts reversed
Foreign exchange differences
Used during year

31-Dec-10

1-Jan-11
Additional provisions for fiscal year

Acquisition of subsidiary/ absorption of
Pantechniki

Unused provisions reversed
Foreign exchange differences
Used provisions for fiscal year

31-Dec-11

Analysis of total provisions:
Amounts in ,000 EUR

Non-current
Current

Total

GROUPFIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Other Other
provisions Total provisions Total
12,715 12,715 3,772 3,772
2,733 2,733 684 684
(833) (833) (833) (833)
723 723 91 91
(3,199) (3,199) (55) (55)
12,138 12,138 3,658 3,658
12,138 12,138 3,658 3,658
32,759 32,759 26,514 26,514
402 402 160 160
(3,103) (3,103) (616) (616)
225 225 71 71
(6,970) (6,970) (544) (544)
35,451 35,451 29,243 29,243
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
3,219 7,977 332 3,483
32,232 4,161 28,911 176
35,451 12,138 29,243 3,658

Other provisions include the amount of €26,380 famdl pertaining to a provision for potential defaafl a
partner abroad, with which the company participates Joint Venture.
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23

GROUP FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Expenses by nature

1-Jan to 31-Dec-11

1-Jan to 31-Dec-10

Distribu Adminis Distribu  Adminis
Cost of tion trative Cost of tion trative
sales costs expenses Total sales costs expenses Total

Employee benefits 164,846 424 10,023 175,293 213,696 521 12,917 227,134

Inventories used 326,724 137 326,861 340,265 187 193 340,645

Depreciation of PPE 22,904 34 3,546 26,484 27,971 35 5,981 33,987

Amortisation of intangible

assets 70 - 44 115 123 - 36 159

Repair and maintenance

expenses of PPE 25,368 10 106 25,484 25,278 25 172 25,476

Operating lease rents 13,910 9 2,569 16,488 22,963 139 2,173 25,275

Third party fees 304,222 296 12,471 316,990 524,791 1,095 9,296 535,181

Provisions for doubtful

receivables 1,480 - 275 1,755 286 - 117 403

Other 100,496 490 6,253 107,239 73,897 950 8,131 82,978
1,271,23

Total 960,020 1,264 35,425 996,709 1,229,270 2,952 39,015 7

COMPANY FIGURES
Amounts in ,000 EUR
1-Jan to 31-Dec-11 1-Jan to 31-Dec-10
Administr Administr
Cost of ative Cost of ative
sales expenses Total sales expenses Total

Employee benefits 63,200 6,064 69,264 81,910 8,056 89,966

Inventories used 109,316 108 109,424 154,713 107 154,820

Depreciation of PPE 9,854 550 10,404 11,030 332 11,363

Amortisation of

intangible assets 11 4 15 5 - 5

Repair and maintenance

expenses of PPE 5,228 117 5,345 5,875 114 5,989

Operating lease rents 6,010 2,381 8,391 9,179 2,009 11,188

Third party fees 135,218 6,073 141,291 240,584 7,418 248,001

Other 38,064 4,122 42,186 31,408 4,769 36,177

Total 366,901 19,419 386,319 534,704 22,804 557,509
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24  Other operating income/ (expenses)

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Income / (expenses) from participations & secisifie 8 89 52,915 36
excluding dividends)
Profits/(losses) from the sale of financial assetslable for . (5) . (5)
sale

Profits from sale of % in EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS
(EGU) & adjustment at fair value of the remainirajding 261,250 B - -
and of the holding in HELLAS GOLD SA.
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of subsidiaries - 193 - 3
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of Associates (11) - (21)
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of JVs - (18) - (18)
4,730 490 2,318 291

Profit/ (losses) from the sale of PPE
Amortisation of grants received 22 14 - -
Rents 1,348 2,198 7,031 9,906
Impairment provisions and write-offs (72,617) - (30,948) -
Other profit/ (losses) 2,137 9,849 3,000 1,598
Total 196,879 12,800 34,317 11,791

Given the overall economic instability, and parfdly the ongoing recession of the Greek economy i
effects on the construction sector, relating tchigiblic projects and private economic activitye tfanagement
proceeded to make more prudent estimates on 3D1R.2oncerning the degree and time or recovenhef t
Group’s invoiced and non-invoiced receivables. Aseault of this reevaluation, the Management formed
impairment provisions and disposals for FY 2011 anting to a total of €72,617 thousand, with respeatredit
entries in the construction sector sums “Trade Rabkes”, “Receivables from Construction Contract©Other
Receivables” and “Other Provisions”. These provisipertain to: (a) completed projects in the Publid wider
Public sector, for which the certification and riptef relevant amounts has become doubtful dubécadverse
economic conditions, (b) foreign projects, andtfc lesser extent, receivables from the domestiate sector.
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25 Financial income/ (expenses) - net

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Janto
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Interest expenses
- Bank borrowings (17,365) (14,661) (6,956) (2,753)
- Financial Lease (22) (97) - -
(17,387) (14,758) (6,956) (2,753)
Interest income 4,236 3,770 871 766
Net interest (expenses)/ income (13,150) (10,989) (6,085) (1,987)
Other financial expenses
Commissions paid for letters of guarantee (1,645) (1,704) (676) (632)
Miscellaneous bank expenses (719) (1,441) (166) (279)
(2,365) (3,145) (842) (911)
Net foreign exchange differences profit/ (lossydro
borrowings 2,477 1,883 2,528 1,907
Financial income/ (expenses) - net (13,038) (12,251 (4,399) (990)
26 Employee benefits
Amounts in ,000 EUR
GROUP FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Wages and salaries 126,727 161,479 48,045 63,459
Social security expenses 29,368 42,439 16,603 22,336
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 5,069 4,242 4,198 3,603
Other employee benefits 14,129 18,974 419 568
Total 175,293 227,134 69,264 89,966
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27 Income tax

Amounts in ,000 EUR

GROUPFIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Tax for the year 9,172 14,901 862 36
Extraordinary, social responsibility levy - 4,199 - 1,875
Deferred tax (14,880) 4,011 (6,661) 5,167
Total (5,709) 23,111 (5,799) 7,078

Pursuant to Law 3845/2010, a new extraordinary leag imposed in 2010 on all Greek companies whosfitp
for FY 2009 exceeded €100 thousand. The charge @ewuo €4,199 thousand for the Group, and to &1,87
thousand for the Company.

Pursuant to Law 3943/2011, the income tax rateStmriétés Anonyme is set at 20% for FY 2011 andetfear.
Further, a 25% withholding tax is imposed on thstrdbuted profits by domestic companies, imposethe
beneficiaries and applies to distributable pradipgproved on 1 January 2012 and thereafter., Tthalding tax
rate for profits distributed in 2011 is 21%.

Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonyme and Limitedbility Companies whose annual financial statersene
mandatorily audited by legally appointed auditorge aequired to obtain an “Annual Certificate” under
Article 82(5) of Law 2238/1994, which is issuedlda¥ing a tax audit performed by the legally appethauditor
or audit firm that audits the annual financial staénts. Upon completion of the tax audit, the lggappointed
auditor or auditing firm issues to the company axXTompliance Report” and then the legally appdiraeditor

or auditing firm submits it to the Ministry of Finee electronically no later than ten days fromehpiry date of
the deadline set for the approval of the compafigancial statements by the General Assembly of&iwders.
The Ministry of Finance will choose a sample oftagr companies representing at least 9% which lvallre-
audited by the competent auditing services of theidtty. The audit in question will have been cdeted no
later than eighteen months of the date of submissidhe “Tax Compliance Report” to the Ministry Bihance.

The table presenting the analysis of unauditedffigears of all companies under consolidationh®as in Note
7.

Tax on profit before taxes of the company is défdrfrom the theoretical amount that would arisevéf use the
weighted average tax rate of the country from whieghcompany originates, as follows:
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Amounts in ,000 EUR

Profit / (losses) before tax

Tax calculated on profits under current tax ratgdiad in
the respective countries

Adjustments

Other income not subject to tax
Expenses non-rebatable for tax purposes
Past year taxes and other duties

Use of tax losses from prior fiscal years

Difference in income from construction contractsdzhon
% completion for which a deferred tax has not been
recognized.

Difference between current tax rate and deferredate

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset wagyrésed

Extraordinary levy

Income Tax

28 Dividends per share

The Board of Directors decided not to distributeidiénds for 2011.

GROUPFIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
41,864 9,383 (95,789) 6,294
(5,182) 11,069 (19,158) 1,511
(14,123) (2,325) 11,861 (1,838)
11,727 352,7 5,576 1,708

2,858 2,917 852 8
(4,394) (1,265) (4,083) -
1,566 (125) 328 561
(1,549) (51) (2,174) (370)
3,388 5,955 - 3,623

- 4,199 - 1,875
(5,709) 23,111 (5,799) 7,078

annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be meldine 2012.
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29 Commitments

The following amounts represent commitments foeraping leases from Group subsidiaries, which easdd to
third parties.

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
Up to 1 year 241 1,083 41 1,023
From 1-5 years 608 2,136 62 2,044
Over 5 years 332 - - -
Total 1,181 3,219 103 3,067

30 Contingent assets and liabilities

(a) Proceedings have been initiated against theiar labour accidents which occurred duringeakecution of
construction projects by companies or joint vergurewhich the Group participates. Because the Gisdully
insured against labour accidents, no substanti@librances are anticipated as a result of rulimgsnat the
Group. Other litigations or disputes referred tbitaation, as well as the pending court or arbibratrulings are
not expected to have a material effect on the Gi@dposition or the operations of the Group or @@mmpany, and
for this reason no relevant provisions have beeméda.

(b) Unaudited tax years for consolidated Groumganies are presented in Note 7. Group tax ligdslifor these
years have not been finalized yet and therefordtiaddl charges may arise when the relevant aualits
performed by tax authorities. The unaudited year®AKTOR are FY 2010-2011. As regards FY 2011,pheent
company is being audited by PricewaterhouseCodparsAlso, as regards the Group subsidiaries estadyi in
Greece, the competent audit departments have sglreachmenced tax audit procedures for FY 2011. The
Company’s management is not expecting significartliabilities, upon completion of the tax audither than
those recorded and presented in the financialmtits.

(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in radatito banks, other guarantees, and other mattersitise from its
normal business activity and from which no subs&hnthanges are expected to arise.
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31 related party transactions

All amounts in EUR thousand.

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases liveginning of the year, as well as the closingrz®s of
receivables and liabilities at year end, which hasailted from transactions with related partiedennAS 24, are

as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Sales of goods and services
Sales to subsidiaries
Sales to associates
Sales to related parties
Purchases of goods and services
Purchases from subsidiaries
Purchases from associates
Purchases from related parties

Key management compensation

Receivables
Receivables from subsidiaries

Receivables from associates
Receivables from affiliates
Liabilities
Payables to subsidiaries
Payables to associates
Payables to affiliates
Borrowings
Payables to subsidiaries
Payables to affiliates
Dividends payable
Payables to affiliates

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Janto

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
111,057 157,974 118,029 177,258
- - 51,559 80,098

- 27,773 - -
111,057 130,201 66,470 97,161
13,419 18,213 24,001 43,791
- - 18,267 22,669

- 3,082 - -
13,419 15,131 5,734 21,122
4,526 6,082 3,847 5,720

GROUP FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10
56,490 99,372 95,454 71,402
- - 66,126 50,957
1,281 4,513 - -
55,209 94,858 29,328 20,445
41,143 57,353 49,863 35,662
- - 18,585 10,969
250 667 - -
40,893 56,687 31,279 24,693
6,101 1,018 - 537
- - - 537
6,101 1,018 - -
- - - 9,293
- - - 9,293
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32 Other notes

1. No liens exist on tangible fixed assets.

2. The number of employees on 31.12.2011 was 1,653h&®1Company and 2,354 for the Group (excluding
Joint Ventures) and the respective number of enggseyn 31.12.2010 was 2,151 and 2,970.

3. On 1 February 2011, the Company announced that AD&@@ Venture, led by AKTOR with a participation
of 40%, was awarded project: GSE Maintenance FgacMotor Transport Workshop, Facilities Maintenanc
Facility Building and Facilities Maintenance FatyillWWorkshop at the New Doha International Airpdrhe
contractual amount for the above project is QAR,238@,603 (€68 million). The project constructiornripd
will be 13 months.

4. Under the transfer agreement by AKTOR CONCESSIONS®EI&P-AVAX SA of 15% held by AKTOR
CONCESSIONS SA in MOREAS SA (Concessionaire of @arinth-Tripoli-Kalamata Motorway and
Lefktro-Sparta branch), effected on 25 February12Ghe parent company’s (AKTOR SA) participation
percentage in the joint venture constructing sameot was reduced accordingly. Therefore, AKTOR SA
participates in the construction joint venture with67%, reduced by 15%.

5. On 17 May 2011, the government of Saint Peterskamg the Joint Venture AKTOR SA-ACTOR
CONCESSIONS SA-HELECTOR SA,signed the concessiomtraot for the Design, Construction,
Financing, Operation and Maintenance of a wastatrtrent plant in Yanino, region of Leningrad, Saint
Petersburg. The investment will amount to €300iamll The construction period will be 4 years, intthg
the period required for licensing and trial comrurafg, and the concession will extend over a gkdb30
years. The plant will be treating 350,000 tons dked waste annually. The plant covers a total arka
70,000m2 approximately.

6. In July 2011 the Minister of Environment, Energyablimate Change and other jointly competent mémsst
signed the Decision, approving the Environmentatn®e for the Mining and Ore Plant project at the
Kassandra Mines, Halkidiki, operated by HELLAS GOHA. The mining and ore activities in Kassandra,
Halkidiki represents an investment of PPE to thewam of €1.3 billion, which, once fully developedlill
employ approximately 1,800 workers. The projeceotiye will be the mining, processing and produttid
metals such as silver, gold, copper, and lead amdconcentrates.

7. On 1 October 2011 AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONALTD entered into an agreement for the
sale of 13,000,000 shares in EUROPEAN GOLDFIELD®#tar Holding, i.e. 7.07% of its share capitat, fo
the total amount of CAD 130 million. Therefore thieolding of AKTOR CONSTRUCTION
INTERNATIONAL LTD in EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS was adjustl to 12.2% of its share capital, and
Qatar Holding holds a call option for acquiring #rey 9,373,390 shares at CAD 13 per share. The
management of AKTOR deemed the above agreement tppropriate both for facilitating the financing
with a view to ensuring immediate commencementtafse | of the HELLAS GOLD project in Halkidiki and
for Qatar Holding to participate in the projectaastrategic investor.

8. On 15 November 2011 the parent company, AKTOR S¥ered into a contract for the completion of the

project “Construction of the National Modern Art Beum”. The contractual price stands at €26.3 millio
plus VAT, and the construction period was set tardiths.
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9. The companies included for the first time in tlomgolidated financial statements of the curremtafiyear,
because they were established or acquired duritd,2fut were not included in the consolidated faialn
statements on 31.12.2010 are the following:

i) Full consolidation method:

>

>

>

>

>

AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD (¥ consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)
AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD (% consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)
AKTOR SUDAN LTD (1 consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)

BAQTOR MINING CO LTD (T consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)
BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD (£' consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)

VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD (1% consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)

ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY (1 consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)
NEMO MARITIME COMPANY (1* consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)
AKTOR QATAR WLL (1* consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)

BIOSAR ENERGY SA (' consolidation in the interim summary financial seof 30.06.2011)

ILIAKI ADERES SA (1% consolidation in the interim summary financial sepof 30.06.2011)

ii) Net equity method:

AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD (I* consolidation in the financial statements of 312021)

While included in the consolidated financial staémts for 2010, the following companies were not
included in the consolidated financial statementstifie current year: LATOMIA STYLIDAS SA and
LATOMIKI IMATHIAS SA (absorbed by HELLENIC QUARRIESSA in Q1 2011), and DIMITRA SA
and HELLENIC LIGNITES SA (absorbed by HELLENIC QUARES SA in Q4 2011), (Note 7). Also,
while included in the annual consolidated finanstatements of 31.12.2010 using the equity mettnad,
associate EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO LTD is not imbdd in the statements for the current
year ( liquidation in Q3 2011). EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDSD (EGU) and HELLAS GOLD SA (EX)
are no longer consolidated as associates usingghigy method since , following the sale of 7.07%%6 t
Qatar Holding, they were reclassified as Finanegdets available for sale. The results of the above
companies in the 9-month period of 2011, are irtlith the row “Profit/(loss) from associates"” infir
and loss (Note 7).

A change was made in the consolidation method ofmpamy PANTECHNIKI SA-
KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA Company compared to the firahstatements as of 31.12.2010. On
31.12.2010 this company was consolidated as ariagsaising the equity method; starting from thd en
of Q4 2011, the company is consolidated using tilecbnsolidation method as a subsidiary, as altesu
of the Group's increased stake in said company.
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10. The total fees payable to the Group’s legal auslitor the mandatory audit on the annual finandetesnents
for FY 2011 stand at €365 thousand (2010: €364ga0d), and at €49 thousand for other services (V9D
thousand).

33 Events after the reporting period

1. On 16 January 2012, the parent company, AKTOR Si#) & leader participation share of 51% in a joint
venture with Turkish company ARBIOGAZ, entered ist@ontract for the construction of project “WASTE
TREATMENT PLANT OF THE METROPOLITAN MUNICIPALITY OF SMYRNA (TURKEY) -
SLUDGE DIGESTION AND DRYING PLANT". The contractugrice stands at €25.4 million plus VAT,
and the construction period was set to 36 months.

2. On 25 January 2012, the parent company, AKTOR S4dihg a 51% leader share in a Joint Venture with
the Romanian company ARCADA, undertook the consimacof the Micasasa-Coslariu section of the
Brasov-Simeria Railroad Line. The contractual priamounted to €168 million, plus VAT, and the
construction period was set to 3 years. The prajastfinanced by the EU Cohesion Fund by 85% anithdy
Romanian Government by 15%.

3. On 24 February 2012, following approval by Canadiaarts, the merger of all the sharesE&fROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS (EGU) by ELDORADO GOLD CORPORATION wasropleted. Earlier, on 21 February,
the Extraordinary General Meeting of each compamyr@ved the merger proposal relating to the isfue o
new ELDORADO shares with an exchange ratio of EBBORADO shares for each EGU share.

4. On 23 March 2012, the parent company, AKTOR SApated of all its shares held in subsidiary PSITALIA
MARITIME COMPANY to third parties outside the Group
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5. On March 2012, in Sofia the parent company, AKT®R and the National Infrastructure Department of
the Ministry of Public Works of Bulgaria entereddra contract for the construction of STRUMA Motayy
section LOT-4, Sandanski — Kulata. The project lmtdgands at €28,700 thousand (excl. VAT), and the
technical object will also include: (a) the constion of a closed motorway with two traffic lanesdaone
emergency lane in each direction, with a total rdadk width of 25m for a length of 15km, and (¥ th
modification of the route of the existing railroéide for a length of 4km. The construction periodtioe
project is 23 months and the relevant funds weosiged by the European Union through the “TranSpor

program.
Kifissia, 26 March 2012
THE CHAIRMAN OF THE THE ACCOUNTING
oA OF T THE MANAGING DIRECTOR  THE HEAD OF ACCOUNTING A7y
DIMITRIOS P. HARALAMBOS .
DIMITRIOS A. KOUTRAS (S TROS P NYROPORGreA OLGA S. SOFIANOU
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